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1                     PROCEEDINGS

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Pursuant to the

3 authority vested in me by the State of Illinois and

4 the Illinois Commerce Commission I call for hearing

5 T13-0081.  May we have appearances, starting with

6 Evansville Railway.  Your name.

7               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.  My name is

8 Craig Reeves.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And your law office

10 and who you represent and your address and phone

11 number.

12               MR. REEVES:  Yes.  I represent the

13 Evansville Western Railway, Incorporated.  My firm

14 is Barrett, B-A-R-R-E-T-T, Twomey, T-W-O-M-E-Y,

15 Broom, Hughes & Hoke, H-O-K-E, LLP.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And Norfolk Southern.

17               MR. FLYNN:  For the record, your

18 Honor, Neil F. Flynn, F-L-Y-N-N.  My business

19 address is 600 South Second Street, Suite 102,

20 Springfield, Illinois, 62704.  Phone number,

21 217-544-0261.  I'm an attorney licensed to practice

22 in the State of Illinois and I'm appearing on

23 behalf of Norfolk Southern.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  IDOT.

25               MS. KUNTZ:  Jennifer Kuntz,
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1 K-U-N-T-Z, 2300 South Dirksen Parkway, Springfield,

2 Illinois, 62764.  Telephone, 217-782-3215.

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And Oeneus.

4               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Kim Fladhammer,

5 F-L-A-D-H-A-M-M-E-R, for Bailey Glasser, 3601

6 McDonough Street, Joliet, Illinois, 60431,

7 (815)730-8213.

8               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Staff.

9               MR. TOLIVER:  Aaron Toliver, T-O-L-I,

10 V as in Victor, E-R.  I represent the Staff of the

11 Commerce Commission Rail Safety Section.  Business

12 address 527 East Capitol Avenue, Springfield,

13 Illinois, 62703.  217 -- I'm sorry, 62701.

14 217-785-8420.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  All right.  At the

16 last hearing we noted that the correct spelling for

17 Oeneus was O-E-N-U-S; is that correct?

18               MS. FLADHAMMER:  It's O-E-N-E-U-S.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  O-E-N-E-U-S?

20               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Correct.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And I thought I had

22 had that corrected on the notice of hearing but I

23 didn't.  But I did do an ALJ ruling which again

24 spells it wrong, but at any rate I did a ruling.

25 Did you get that?
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1               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.

2               MR. FLYNN:  Yes, sir.

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  If everybody

4 got that then despite the fact that everything yet

5 filed to date has the incorrect spelling it looks

6 like, why don't we start using the correct one so

7 that when it comes time for an order we'll have it

8 changed.

9               So before we went on the record I

10 asked if there had been any agreement dealing with

11 the -- how do you pronounce it, Oeneus?

12               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Oeneus.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  -- with the

14 objection of Oeneus to this petition and was

15 informed that they had not reached agreement.  My

16 understanding from the response is that the

17 objection was based upon what appeared to me to be

18 a private agreement between the two of them which I

19 said indicated to me that that was truly between

20 the two of them and not involving the Commission.

21 Mr. Reeves agreed that -- he agreed with my initial

22 thoughts and Ms. Fladhammer said that she thought

23 that was evidence of the petitioner's anticipated

24 need therefore apparently.  Is that a fair

25 recitation of what you said?
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1               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Yes.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Would you like

3 to expand on that?

4               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Judge, as I

5 indicated off the record just that the contract

6 that was entered into between EVWR and Savatran

7 anticipated this additional capacity and as a part

8 of that we believe that the additional at-grade

9 crossing at Liberty Road that they're requesting,

10 an additional one is unnecessary and increases the

11 need for automobile and rail safety at that

12 location.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Are you planning on

14 putting on evidence in that regard other than the

15 agreement?

16               MS. FLADHAMMER:  No, your Honor.

17               MR. REEVES:  And Judge, my position

18 for EVWR would be as the Court as already stated.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Pardon me a second.

20 Because of these blowers this is sometimes hard.

21 So if you could speak up a tad that would be

22 helpful.

23               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.  EVWR's

24 position would be that the contract is a private

25 agreement between them, the Commission is not the
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1 appropriate forum for the enforcement of the terms

2 of that contract.  To the extent that the response

3 from Savatran in Paragraph 8 says an additional

4 crossing increases concerns for automobile and rail

5 safety I believe that's properly before the

6 Commission.

7               As to the terms of the contract, as

8 to the remedies that the contract might provide, if

9 what we're doing breeches it I think there's

10 another forum and that's probably in state or

11 federal court rather than before the Commission.

12 So I'd submit that it's not -- it's not appropriate

13 that the Commission litigate what is essentially a

14 contract claim.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Well, it's my

16 understanding that Ms. Fladhammer is not asking

17 that we litigate the contract claim just that she

18 presented it as evidence of petitioner's need;

19 isn't that right?

20               MS. FLADHAMMER:  That's correct, your

21 Honor, we're not asking you to litigate the

22 contract issues.  But when this contract was

23 entered into it was anticipated that additional

24 capacity would be used at that time and therefore

25 it's not necessary to have another at-grade
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1 crossing at that location.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And as I understand

3 it, again I think in the previous hearing you

4 indicated that the need was extra bar service

5 somewhere, I don't know if -- the Ohio River, I

6 guess, and other coal mines and some other

7 agreements with Norfolk Southern.

8               MR. REEVES:  That's correct, sir.

9 New traffic is not anticipated to come from

10 Savatran's coal mine it's anticipated to come from

11 other coal mines and other shippers that would

12 require our rail services.

13               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Your Honor, if I

14 could just respond to that.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Sure.

16               MS. FLADHAMMER:  This contract does

17 anticipate that and is not limited to just

18 shipments from Savatran.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  All right.  I didn't

20 bring down the rules.  You seem to have your rules

21 handy.  And I'd have to look at exactly the

22 concerns we have as for the need of a second track,

23 how essential that is to our inquiry versus merely

24 safety.  As long as you have the right-of-way and

25 we have -- and there's either agreement or
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1 willingness to accept the order for safety purposes

2 I'm not sure how much the need issue comes into

3 play.  Do you have any regs on that or -- Mr.

4 Toliver, have you looked at that?

5               MR. REEVES:  Judge, I don't believe

6 the need for another track really comes into the

7 Commission's decision.  It should be whether the

8 safety of the public and the public interest will

9 be served by the crossing as proposed at this

10 location.

11               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Sometimes the rules

12 talk about the need any way.  Do you recall?

13               MR. TOLIVER:  Based on my study of

14 the rules as far as -- it says that -- well, the

15 statute says that the -- that no rail carrier may

16 construct its track across city highway or no

17 highway across track without first securing the

18 permission of the Commission.  And then it goes on

19 to say that the Commission can set what other terms

20 are appropriate in the administrative code, I guess

21 those are the terms.  And the only terms based on

22 need are for a road, a new road, to cross a

23 railroad that exists.  There is no similar

24 administrative code requirement for need of a track

25 going across an existing road.
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1               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Right.  And that's my

2 recollection at least that it had -- the need will

3 come into play for some extent for a new crossing.

4 Whether -- I wouldn't have limited it that way but

5 your reading may be more correct that there it's

6 new road over crossing track as opposed to the

7 other way.  Have you researched that at all, Ms.

8 Fladhammer?

9               MS. FLADHAMMER:  No, I have not.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I suppose it's not

11 going to change your evidence much one way or the

12 other, Mr. Reeves?

13               MR. REEVES:  It would not, Judge.  If

14 your Honor believes that in fact the need for

15 another track is part of this and that the contract

16 between EVWR and Savatran bears on that need then

17 that might become part of that evidence.  Otherwise

18 I would consider this to be a garden variety

19 crossing here and my evidence would be that the

20 contract does not prevent in any way us from doing

21 what we propose to do.

22               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Well, Ms.

23 Fladhammer represented that she wouldn't have any

24 other evidence on that issue other than obstruction

25 of the contract for that purpose and -- hang on
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1 here a minute.

2               I don't know if that contract was

3 last year or 20 years ago.  But -- and even though

4 there's a representation that the -- is the

5 contract in the record?

6               MR. REEVES:  No, sir.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  I haven't seen

8 the contract yet.  Okay.  And you don't have a

9 witness, you're just going to ask that it be

10 accepted into evidence; is that correct?

11               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Well, it was our

12 understanding that petitioner was actually asking

13 that it be admitted as an exhibit and we have no

14 objection to that.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  But let's look at the

16 motion to file an exhibit under seal to exclude

17 testimony.  Then I guess the first thing is does

18 anybody have an objection or position on that

19 motion.  Mr. Flynn?

20               MR. FLYNN:  Which motion, your Honor?

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Oh, okay.  Well, as

22 far as -- I don't even know if the motion to file

23 exhibit under seal.  Okay.  And/or exclude

24 testimony.  So you want to discuss those as two

25 separate motions then?
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1               MR. FLYNN:  Well, your Honor, could I

2 maybe raise a couple of questions?

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Sure.  I assume we're

4 going somewhere in the same direction or it's all

5 going to come back to the same place.

6               MR. FLYNN:  Well, I think so, your

7 Honor.  But I -- Norfolk Southern's position is

8 that the matter before us today, or this petition

9 is, it's not a case of a new crossing, this is a

10 case to put a new track through an existing

11 crossing.  And if the issue is as a result of

12 petition to make a change at an at-grade crossing

13 there are issues presented, I believe that's what

14 the issue is.

15               On the issue of whether there is a

16 need for a track at all or permission to build a

17 track or abandon a track that's not a matter that

18 we believe is before the Commission, that's STB,

19 you can only abandon a line, build a line.  Where

20 it becomes an issue --

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  What is STB?

22               MR. FLYNN:  I'm sorry, Surface

23 Transportation Board.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Thank you.

25               MR. FLYNN:  It becomes an ICC issue,
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1 your Honor, we believe when the track in question

2 either cuts across a public roadway at-grade or

3 there is a grade separation.  And the question of

4 the public safety at that location is primarily the

5 Commission's jurisdiction.  If what we're really

6 talking about here is a business dispute that is

7 embodied in this contract and now there is a motion

8 pending that the only way that this will be in

9 evidence here is under seal and there's a motion

10 pending you don't want any testimony about it in

11 public, I'm a little bit perplexed as to how the

12 admission of a document that we can't testify about

13 or read or have had a chance to look at before

14 today becomes -- it becomes very difficult to

15 proceed on the merits depending on your ruling.  So

16 your Honor, that's what I'm hemming and hawing here

17 a bit.

18               But the contract which people are

19 talking about here nobody has seen except the

20 parties themselves.  And if that's the basis for

21 the objection I'm not in a very good position to

22 use that to review the document to frame a position

23 or ask questions or to comment about it.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  So you don't

25 have a position on the motion to file under seal or
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1 exclude the testimony thereon at this point?  I

2 mean, you might want to object but you don't know

3 because you haven't seen it; is that correct?

4               MR. FLYNN:  That's correct, your

5 Honor.

6               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Ms. Fladhammer,

7 do you have a position on this motion?

8               MS. FLADHAMMER:  We have no

9 objection.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And IDOT?

11               MS. KUNTZ:  Our position would be

12 similar to Mr. Flynn's position.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Mr. Toliver?

14               MR. TOLIVER:  I would say the same.

15 We have no position.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And I forgot,

17 with regard to both -- to Mt. Vernon Township and

18 Jefferson County -- Mt. Vernon Township in

19 Jefferson County and Jefferson County and the City

20 of Mt. Vernon, they are not represented by

21 attorneys today.  Let me just ask -- let's go off

22 the record one second.

23               (WHEREIN, a discussion was held off

24                the record.)

25               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Back on the record.
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1               Off the record I asked for the

2 identity of a couple other individuals in the room

3 here.  And one of them I believe is Terry Moore,

4 the Highway Commissioner of Mt. Vernon Township,

5 T-E-R-Y, M-O-O-R-E.  Is that correct, Mr. Moore?

6               MR. MOORE:  T-E-R-R-Y.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  M-O-O-R-E, correct?

8               MR. MOORE:  Yes.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And it's correct that

10 you are the Highway Commissioner of Mt. Vernon

11 Township and the Township is not represented by

12 Counsel today; is that correct?

13               MR. MOORE:  That's true.

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  And then

15 also present is Brandon Simmons, S-I-M-M-O-N-S, who

16 is the county engineer.  Is that correct, Mr.

17 Simmons?

18               MR. SIMMONS:  Yes, your Honor.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And the County

20 is also not represented by an attorney here today;

21 is that correct?

22               MR. SIMMONS:  That's correct.

23               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  And then

24 we'll also let the record show that there is no

25 representative of Mt. Vernon, the City of Mt.
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1 Vernon here today.  That Mt. Vernon has filed a

2 letter on August 28 with this docket stating that

3 Mt. Vernon, the City, will not be involved in the

4 proceedings and does not wish to appear for the

5 prior hearing nor does it feel it has any

6 involvement.  That although the approach to the

7 crossing is located near the corporate limits the

8 City does not have any jurisdictional interest in

9 the project.  And then Mr. Moore, is it my

10 understanding that you agree that the subject

11 crossing, the approaches on both ends is under the

12 jurisdiction of the Township?

13               MR. MOORE:  Yes, sir.

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  Thank you.

15 Then we also had a discussion on whether the road

16 authority in this case, being the Township, would

17 have to do any work to meet the grade requirements

18 once an extra track is placed there, or if an extra

19 track is placed here.  And I believe there was --

20 the Railroad was not positive because on one hand

21 while the Railroad was -- believed it would not

22 have to do so and believed it had a hundred foot

23 right-of-way in fact the drawing plans filed with

24 the petition have some lines which appear to be the

25 right-of-way lines but are not so designated
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1 therefore we do not have reliable information here

2 today to positively represent the width of the

3 right-of-way and therefore determine whether the

4 road work will be done.  Before I go further, is

5 that a fair representation so far, Mr. Reeves?

6               MR. REEVES:  I believe so, yes.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Flynn?

8               MR. FLYNN:  Yes.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Fladhammer?

10               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Yes.

11               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Kuntz?

12               MS. KUNTZ:  Yes.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And Mr. Toliver?

14               MR. TOLIVER:  I guess the only

15 qualification I would have is whether it's on the

16 right-of-way or not it needs to be done to comply

17 with the administrative code.  It is a public

18 roadway and whether 100 feet away is the

19 right-of-way line or not the code applies to the

20 road within the Railroad's right-of-way.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Right.  I thought that

22 it -- to get that one degree from 25 foot out or

23 whatever that that could possibly be done if the

24 right-of-way was wide enough.  But you're saying

25 that no, it's always going to go outside the
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1 right-of-way?

2               MR. TOLIVER:  I'm just saying they're

3 going to have to do road work on whatever amounts

4 to the Township's road wherever the right-of-way

5 lies.  If it's the Township's road they have the

6 right to -- even if it's an easement, it's a right

7 to the public road.

8               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  I understand.

9 I'm sorry.  So you're saying that even if it's in

10 the right-of-way that the road authority still

11 maintains the --

12               MR. TOLIVER:  Right.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  -- road up to the

14 crossing proper, correct?

15               MR. TOLIVER:  That's correct.  So

16 their permission is required one way or the other.

17               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Because the road

18 authority has an easement for the purpose of

19 maintaining the right-of-way.

20               MR. TOLIVER:  Correct.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  All right.  Then with

22 that clarification -- so I think that what we've

23 come to is that one way or the other the road

24 authority will be directed in an order, if the

25 additional track is granted, to do the work on the
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1 approach grade to the comply with the Commission's

2 requirements and I believe that the Railroad has

3 agreed it will be responsible to be reimbursed for

4 that work.  Is that correct, Mr. Reeves?

5               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.

6               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And with that in mind,

7 Mr. Moore, does the Township have any -- excuse me.

8 And also of course the Township would be

9 responsible for the maintenance of the road

10 thereafter.  So once again, is that a fair

11 representation, Mr. Reeves?

12               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Flynn?

14               MR. FLYNN:  Yes, your Honor.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Fladhammer?

16               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Yes.

17               JUDGE DUGGAN:  IDOT?

18               MS. KUNTZ:  Yes, your Honor.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And Mr. Toliver?

20               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, your Honor.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  With that in mind, Mr.

22 Moore, do you know what the Township's position is

23 going to be on this petition or would you rather

24 wait for the hearing to be completed?

25               MR. MOORE:  I'm fine with it.
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1               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So the Township has no

2 objection to granting -- the leave granted by the

3 petition?

4               MR. MOORE:  Right.

5               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Or requested by the

6 petition?

7               MR. MOORE:  Right, we're okay.

8               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And Mr. Simmons, do

9 you know what the position of Jefferson County is

10 going to be?

11               MR. SIMMONS:  Yes, we are in

12 agreement.  That would be fine.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I'm sorry?

14               MR. SIMMONS:  That would be fine, we

15 have no objection.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I just want to take

17 care of the fact that they're here and they're not

18 represented by Counsel and wanted to take their

19 position as long as we're doing that.

20               Back to presenting a position based

21 upon sealed exhibits and testimony.  I know they do

22 this in Utilities but I've never had to study the

23 procedure or the requirements.  Can you address Mr.

24 Flynn's concerns as well as Ms. Kuntz' and Mr.

25 Toliver's, Mr. Reeves?
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1               MR. REEVES:  Judge, the contract

2 concerns the construction and maintenance of the

3 existing track that now crosses the existing

4 crossing there.  It provides for the obligations

5 back and forth between EVWR and Savatran and it

6 also provides on its face that it be treated as

7 confidential by those parties and only disclosed to

8 the extent that it's necessary for the parties to

9 enforce their rights under the contract.

10               Savatran's taking the position that

11 there are things in this contract that would bear

12 on the Commission's decision to allow this crossing

13 to be constructed, or an additional crossing to be

14 constructed.  Our position is that it is not.  And

15 I would submit that if we submit that agreement to

16 your Honor under seal for your review and for us to

17 make remarks and arguments and perhaps testimony

18 concerning it I think you'll be able to see that it

19 doesn't have anything to do with the Commission's

20 decision in this matter today.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Well, let me ask you

22 this.  You seem to be in agreement of the

23 representations made so far.  How much more do we

24 need?  You know, I mean, you're the one -- Ms.

25 Fladhammer, you're the one who's promoting it as
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1 having a bearing on this proceeding.  So let's say

2 that we take as true that there is an agreement and

3 the agreement states certain preconditions and that

4 it was premised upon anticipated future need, let's

5 say we take all that as true, do we need more in

6 the record to make your position?

7               MS. FLADHAMMER:  The only other thing

8 that I would address in regard to that is that in

9 the petition at Paragraph 22 petitioner says that

10 Savatran has not agreed to allow EVWR to use the

11 Savatran connection for non-Savatran service.  And

12 that's part of the contract as well but has to take

13 place and there's no evidence to show that they've

14 ever offered it to us for that statement.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Let me find that.

16               MS. FLADHAMMER:  That's the only

17 additional thing in regard to my other arguments.

18               JUDGE DUGGAN:  What was your point

19 about 22?

20               MS. FLADHAMMER:  My point was that in

21 there's a statement that Savatran has not agreed

22 and then it goes on to allow EVWR to use the

23 Savatran connector for non-Savatran service.  And

24 the contract has a provision to address that issue.

25 And there's no evidence that that was ever offered
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1 to us.  There's just the statement that we didn't

2 agree to it but no evidence to that effect.

3               So therefore I think that the

4 contract is irrelevant or representations regarding

5 the relevancy of that in regard to the additional

6 arguments that I made which was the anticipation of

7 the additional need for the capacity at that

8 location.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.

10               MR. REEVES:  And Judge, if you read

11 on from the language that she just quoted, it says

12 that Savatran has not agreed to allow EVWR to use

13 Savatran connector for non-Savatran service in a

14 manner that would be both economically and

15 operationally feasible.  And I think the testimony

16 will go to the issue that it's not economically

17 feasible for this additional traffic to go across

18 the existing connector.

19               But once again, that all goes to the

20 need for a new railroad line and that's not what's

21 before the Commission this afternoon, it's the need

22 and the appropriateness of the second crossing at

23 the existing road crossing.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And this

25 connector refers to which connection, Mr. Reeves?
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1               MR. REEVES:  It is between -- it

2 might be better to have my witness specify that

3 because he can speak with more authority.  But

4 basically this is --

5               JUDGE DUGGAN:  There's a petition

6 here that's making representation to what the

7 petition is saying when it refers to connector,

8 connects what?

9               MR. REEVES:  Yeah.  And this would be

10 a new connector that serves some new coal mines

11 that are open, possibly some more business

12 concerning fertilizer.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  In your position, when

14 you use the word connector presumably it talks

15 about what it's connecting?

16               MR. REEVES:  Yeah, Judge.  The

17 connector is between EVWR and the Norfolk Southern.

18               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  So --

19               MR. REEVES:  And it is laid out on

20 Exhibit -- Exhibit A.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  All right.  So there

22 is -- if I'm understanding Ms. Fladhammer to say is

23 that Oeneus' connecting track, that Oeneus may be

24 suggesting that could serve the purposes you're

25 seeking from this other track but that either they
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1 have been asked or you have not come to terms and

2 that this track you're proposing would provide an

3 alternate connecting track; is that fair?

4               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.

5               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So the diagram you're

6 going to refer me to is where?

7               MR. REEVES:  It's Exhibit A to the

8 petition.  Yeah, the bottom right corner it says AD

9 2013-23.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Let's see.  I don't

11 see an A designation yet.  Does it -- okay.  I see

12 Exhibit -- okay.  It's the first page or second

13 page?

14               MR. BUCHANAN:  Second.

15               MR. REEVES:  Second page.  The one

16 that says Exhibit A and then the page after that.

17               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And which one depicts

18 the connecting track or the new --

19               MR. REEVES:  That page does and

20 the --

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Which part?

22               MR. REEVES:  If you look at the --

23               JUDGE DUGGAN:  This stuff's too small

24 for me to make sense out of it.

25               MR. REEVES:  It is.
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1               MR. FLYNN:  Your Honor, I think the

2 dotted LINE on that same -- there's a dotted line

3 -- it is small.  But there is a dotted line that

4 runs left to right, that indicates the prepared --

5 that is the connector track that is referenced in

6 the petition.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  So over to the

8 left is EVWR and other to the right is NS?

9               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.

10               MR. FLYNN:  Yes.

11               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And the road is right

12 in the middle there?

13               MR. FLYNN:  That is correct.

14               MR. REEVES:  There's a solid line

15 that says existing Track A and just is proposed

16 Track C.

17               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And then out of

18 curiosity, where is the Oeneus track.

19               MR. REEVES:  That's where it says

20 existing Track A.

21               MR. FLYNN:  It's the solid line, your

22 Honor, that runs immediately next to the dotted

23 line.  Dotted line.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So the existing track

25 is the Oeneus track, is that what you're saying?
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1               MR. FLYNN:  That is correct, your

2 Honor.

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Mr. Reeves?

4               MR. REEVES:  That's correct.

5               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Well, who owns the

6 right-of-way?

7               MR. REEVES:  The petitioner owns the

8 right-of-way.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So EVWR granted Oeneus

10 the right to build a track on EVWR's right-of-way;

11 is that correct?  Say yes or no.

12               MR. REEVES:  That's correct.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Are you going to want

14 to brief the issue of need here, Ms. Fladhammer, or

15 do anything in support of your position?

16               MS. FLADHAMMER:  I'm not going to ask

17 to brief the issue.  I just want to be clear that

18 when I say -- that what I'm arguing is that there

19 is in fact provisions available to allow for the

20 items that have been requested for the petitioner

21 by the petitioners, their petition to make these

22 additional capacity work.  And because that was

23 contemplated at the time that the agreement was

24 entered into it when I say there's no need for an

25 additional track I mean exactly that there's no
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1 need to increase safety issues in regard to having

2 an additional track at the same location where it

3 already exists when that has been contemplated in

4 the past and therefore increase automobile and rail

5 safety at that location.

6               MR. REEVES:  And Judge, from the

7 petitioner's perspective, the evidence would show

8 that they have determined that there is a need for

9 a new line there.  In fact, that construction is

10 under way on that line and that nothing in the

11 contract between EVWR and Savatran, or Oeneus, that

12 would prohibit EVWR from constructing a new line or

13 obtaining a new crossing at Liberty Road.  And I

14 think Counsel would agree that there is no

15 provision for an injunction, there's no provision

16 for having the ICC deny the right to construct any

17 new track based on any concerns about need or the

18 necessity for additional shipping.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  When you say they,

20 who's they?

21               MR. REEVES:  The parties --

22               JUDGE DUGGAN:  You said they have

23 determined a need for an additional track and they

24 are --

25               MR. REEVES:  Yeah, I'm sorry.
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1               JUDGE DUGGAN:  -- going to construct

2 an additional tract.

3               MR. REEVES:  The petitioner has

4 determined the need for an additional track here,

5 the petitioner has begun construction and

6 petitioned the Commission to cross Liberty Road at

7 a second place at this crossing.

8               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Will that track serve

9 its purpose if it doesn't cross this road?

10               MR. REEVES:  No.

11               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So whatever it is

12 they're doing, they're doing it.  I mean, I

13 understand they wouldn't have filed a petition if

14 they didn't have a need to serve their purposes.

15 But I'm not sure how far that goes to what sort of

16 questions we have here.  Well, I mean, the one

17 question that -- returning the focus here the

18 question is -- what I'm trying to get at is what

19 specifically you need to have in the record for Ms.

20 Fladhammer to make her case and whether we can do

21 that without filing documents under seal or take

22 the testimony under seal.  That's what the focus is

23 here.

24               And I understand that on the one hand

25 Ms. Fladhammer is stating that Oeneus very well may
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1 have the capacity to serve the extra number of

2 trains or cars that petitioner says it anticipates

3 it's going to need and that because they may have

4 this capacity therefore there's no need to create a

5 greater safety issue by two tracks than one, is

6 that it?

7               MS. FLADHAMMER:  That's correct.

8               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Or it doesn't

9 justify the greater safety of two?

10               MR. FLYNN:  Your Honor, may I?

11               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Certainly.

12               MR. FLYNN:  Your Honor, you were

13 heading to maybe focus on the issue of contract and

14 testimony and sealing documents.  I think the

15 question we would submit respectfully what in the

16 contract itself specifically relates to the public

17 safety at this place.

18               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I don't think so.  I

19 mean, I don't think so.  I think -- if there were

20 things directly related to public safety, yes, but

21 I don't think it's limited to that because her

22 argument is premised on if we can serve the need

23 therefore the cost to public safety is not

24 justified.

25               MR. FLYNN:  I don't disagree.  Taking
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1 the point one step further.  If as a result of

2 either the contract or an additional track is then

3 presented at this crossing additional concerns

4 because of train speeds, additional number of

5 trains, a number of cars, vision issues, I would

6 concur that those are arguments, those are things

7 that are very well legitimate things, or could be

8 changed by the addition of another track and an

9 existing crossing.  I will submit that that would

10 be appropriate to bring before the Commission.  But

11 a contract between two parties, they could sue each

12 other irrespective of whether it's built or not

13 built, that's the point.

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Well, yeah.  And I

15 think -- yeah, that might be right.  But it's the

16 fundamental argument about whether or not they have

17 the capacity not whether they have conditions.  So

18 I guess you're -- so it would seem to me -- again,

19 I could be off so bring me back if I'm not.  But it

20 sounds to me then, yeah, your argument, Ms.

21 Fladhammer is not that you have a contract, your

22 argument is that you have a capacity that you're

23 willing to allow them to use whether or not you

24 believe the agreeable terms of the contract does

25 not justify.  What do you think about that, Ms.
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1 Fladhammer?

2               MS. FLADHAMMER:  I'm saying that,

3 yes, there is a contract in place that provides for

4 those provisions which would eliminate the need for

5 an additional crossing creating additional safety

6 concerns.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  But I think -- maybe I

8 read Mr. Flynn's comment wrong but I took it this

9 way, that the contract is irrelevant.  You either

10 have the capacity or you don't.

11               MS. FLADHAMMER:  I would agree with

12 that.  I would say though that the contract -- my

13 only argument -- we made our arguments with regard

14 to the objection and they addressed the concerns or

15 the provision of the contract and where they -- of

16 what they are.  But the contract only comes into

17 play in terms of the -- in my opinion, in terms of

18 the way in which it has to be addressed prior to

19 them requesting additional.

20               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Yeah.  But that --

21 Okay.  But that doesn't play on me for safety.

22               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Right.

23               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So, you know, you're

24 off.

25               MS. FLADHAMMER:  I mean, our argument
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1 is our argument as we set forth in our objection as

2 to where it is and the argument we made.  I don't

3 necessarily think you need to have the contract I

4 just have an objection to them presenting it under

5 seal.

6               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Right.  Well, you're

7 the one that wants to make the argument and I want

8 you to be able to make your argument, okay.  So

9 we're trying to figure out a way for you to get

10 what is essential to your argument in the record in

11 a fashion that satisfies everybody's needs for

12 confidentiality.

13               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Correct.

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And see if we can

15 satisfy everybody without having to seal things,

16 okay.  So the contract isn't going improve your

17 capacity?

18               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Correct.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And you have no

20 witness here?

21               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Correct.

22               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So I'm not quite sure

23 how you're going to do that.  But I think that's

24 your argument.  I'm not doubting how far it's going

25 to go but at least we can put it in the record and
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1 no matter what I think the Commission may say

2 you're right or Mr. Toliver may agree the safety

3 issue is just too burdensome and just really needs

4 to be considered here.

5               But again, trying to keep the focus,

6 I think that's fundamentally it.  You have the

7 capacity over what he's saying and you believe the

8 terms potentially could be reached economically and

9 that should be -- I don't know how it's going to be

10 resolved, you know, when we don't have agreement.

11 We're not going to force agreement, economical

12 agreement.  But any way, you want to make your

13 record and we want to do that.

14               So now where are we?  Because the

15 record -- like I say, your contract's not going to

16 prove the fundamental portion of your argument.

17               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Right.  Well, all I

18 can say, your Honor, is that I have made the

19 arguments that we have and I'm going stand on

20 those.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Except to the

22 extent that you think there's -- presents some

23 admission on their part it's not an admission.  If

24 you're saying the contract was premised upon, or

25 anticipated, future capacity and the procedures for
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1 requesting future -- additional use.

2               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Well, I'm saying

3 that that's my objection.  I certainly can inquire

4 I suppose, if we go to a hearing, of the witnesses

5 as to whether those things were complied with.

6               JUDGE DUGGAN:  If no one objects.

7 But if they object I'm not sure...  What I'm saying

8 is that to the extent -- if you think that the

9 contract somehow is evidence of greater capacity

10 that you're -- that is fundamental to your position

11 then we'll find a way to -- well, then we'll

12 explore that.  But if the contract itself doesn't

13 provide evidence of this additional capacity then

14 I'm not sure what relevance it would have.  And

15 even though Mr. Reeves was offering it into

16 evidence essentially he's only offered it in

17 anticipation of dealing with your argument.

18               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Sure.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I'm sure he would

20 withdraw it in a second.

21               MR. REEVES:  Yes, your Honor.  My

22 only concern was I didn't think she could -- I

23 didn't think we could establish that the contract

24 was irrelevant to the Commission today without

25 seeing the contract that it should be sealed if it
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1 was presented.  I think the way your Honor is

2 going, you know, they may argue that they have

3 capacity to make some more shipments on their line,

4 I don't think that controls the Commission's

5 decision here today.  It's not a need based

6 analysis it's a safety based analysis based on the

7 crossing.

8               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And I think that --

9 you know, you can't miss that argument.  There has

10 got to come some point where you don't put up an

11 extra track and create extra safety hazards for one

12 train a year.  At some point they're going to

13 cross, at what point that is I don't know.

14               MR. REEVES:  I think the evidence

15 would establish that as far as the Commission goes.

16 Whatever evidence she wants to present.

17               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Well, you only offered

18 it to begin with for relevance.  It's your burden

19 to establish relevance.  So let's presume for a

20 second that he were to withdraw his offered

21 exhibit, where are you at?  It becomes your -- you

22 either offer it yourself or you choose a

23 substitute.  I understand you came here today

24 presuming that it was -- it would already be in

25 evidence and they would take care of that.
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1               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Well, I guess in

2 terms of how we would proceed would be we'd have to

3 see what the evidence came in from petitioner's

4 side and then determine whether or not we would

5 need to present any additional evidence.

6               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Well, you know,

7 I don't know what's dragging it out but, yeah, I

8 think it's fair given what we've hashed out today

9 and the fact that -- you know, the fact that it was

10 approached in the manner it was approached which

11 would lead her to believe that she wouldn't have do

12 that, you know.  And again, I can understand why

13 everybody did it, to move things along and to try

14 to cooperate.  But because you want a proprietary

15 motion under seal, testimony under seal, we've got

16 people who have -- who can't agree to that without

17 knowing more.  So unless you want to go convince

18 everybody to do that but, you know, I don't see

19 that we're going to be able to everything under

20 seal.

21               So it seems to me that given all the

22 above that it would be best to proceed with the

23 testimony and then let Ms. Fladhammer decide how

24 she wants to respond, whether today or whether --

25               MR. REEVES:  Judge, let me suggest
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1 that I withdraw the motion to file the exhibit

2 under seal with leave to refile it if the contract

3 should be offered into evidence.

4               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Any objection, Mr.

5 Flynn?

6               MR. FLYNN:  None, your Honor.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Fladhammer?

8 That's no?

9               MS. FLADHAMMER:  No, I'm sorry.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Kuntz?

11               MS. KUNTZ:  No, your Honor.

12               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Toliver?

13               MR. TOLIVER:  No, your Honor.

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So we don't forget

15 housekeeping later on, the motion to withdraw the

16 proposed exhibit, is that what you're offering

17 there?

18               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And that would also

20 make your motion filings -- the motion to file

21 exhibit under seal, that's withdrawn, the motion to

22 exclude testimony from public record you're not

23 going to present the testimony, right?

24               MR. REEVES:  Yeah.  I would withdraw

25 my entire motion, like I say, and I request a
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1 motion to refile it subject to this.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Right.  So that motion

3 is granted.  As you say, if anybody feels the need

4 to reoffer it on your part or if she'd offer it

5 then we'll discuss that as that arises.  So with

6 that then who's going to testify here?  One

7 witness?

8               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And your name is?

10               MR. BUCHANAN:  Robert Buchanan.  It's

11 B-U-C-H-A-N-A-N.

12               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Mr. Buchanan,

13 raise your right hand.

14               MR. BUCHANAN:  Yes, sir.

15                    *  *  *  *  *

16                   ROBERT BUCHANAN,

17 of lawful age, produced, sworn and examined on

18 behalf of the Petitioner, testifies and says:

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  Thank you.

20 You're speaking as much for her --

21               THE WITNESS:  To her.

22               JUDGE DUGGAN:  She's going to take

23 everything down verbatim, word-for-word, whether it

24 makes sense or not and everybody's going to try to

25 speak one at a time.  Let people finish their
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1 questions.  Even though you know the answer to his

2 question, if he's two words into it let him finish

3 his questions and similar for everybody else.

4 Thank you very much.  You want to proceed.

5               DIRECT EXAMINATION

6 QUESTIONS BY MR. REEVES:

7       Q.      Would you state your full name for

8 the record?

9       A.      Robert Allen Buchanan.

10       Q.      And what's your occupation, Mr.

11 Buchanan?

12       A.      I am the vice president and general

13 manager of the Evansville Western Railway.

14       Q.      And that's the petitioner in this

15 case?

16       A.      Yes.

17       Q.      What experience in the railroad

18 industry do you have?

19       A.      Well, I've been on the railroad for

20 39 years and I've held various jobs from a laborer,

21 I have been a machine operator, and I have been a

22 track inspector.  I have been a road master, I have

23 been an assistant chief engineer, chief engineer

24 and now vice president and general manager of

25 Evansville Western.
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1       Q.      As part of your position at the

2 petitioner are you called upon to advise EVWR about

3 the need for new rail projects?

4       A.      Yes.

5       Q.      Are you the primary person that the

6 petitioner relies on for that decision?

7       A.      Yes.

8       Q.      And are you the person who signed the

9 petition in this matter?

10       A.      I am.

11       Q.      And did you also sign the

12 verification that's attached to the petition?

13       A.      I am.

14       Q.      And is everything in this petition

15 true and correct to the best of your knowledge?

16       A.      Yes.

17       Q.      Would you describe for the Judge the

18 proposed road crossing that you seek to place at

19 Liberty Road?

20       A.      The crossing is going to be protected

21 by flashers and gates, it will be a composite

22 crossing just like the one that's in the other

23 track.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I think we may have

25 started in the middle of the story here.  You want
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1 to establish -- there's a crossing -- where the

2 crossing is at, what the track is there, where it

3 goes to, comes from and that you want an additional

4 track.

5               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.

6               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Then we can talk about

7 safety devices there and then we'll talk about a

8 crossing that we know already exists.

9               MR. REEVES:  Uh-huh.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.

11               BY:  MR. REEVES

12       Q.      Is there an existing crossing at

13 Liberty Road?

14       A.      Yes, there is.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  This Liberty Road is

16 in Jefferson County just outside the jurisdiction

17 of the City of Mt. Vernon, correct?

18               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.

20               BY:  MR. REEVES

21       Q.      And was that crossing approved by a

22 previous proceeding before this Commission?

23       A.      It was.

24       Q.      Would you describe the existing track

25 that uses that crossing?



61

1       A.      It is a -- it has 136 pound rail in

2 it, it has flashers and gates at it, it has a

3 composite crossing in it.  That's about it.

4       Q.      And what rail line crosses that,

5 would you describe the rail line itself?

6       A.      The rail line connects the Norfolk

7 Southern with the Evansville Western.

8       Q.      And what is the purpose of the

9 existing track?

10       A.      To handle coal.

11       Q.      Okay.  And where does the coal come

12 from?

13       A.      Coal comes out of Hillsboro and

14 Macoupin and we also haul coal out of Sugar Camp

15 going back to the NS.  It goes to Georgia Power.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Sugar Camp?

17               THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  That is the name

18 of the coal mine.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  What'd you say,

20 Georgia Power?

21               THE WITNESS:  Georgia Power,

22 P-O-W-E-R.

23               BY:  MR. REEVES

24       Q.      And is that the existing track that

25 is currently -- that is currently there that is
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1 being used to ship that coal?

2       A.      Yes.

3       Q.      And does that coal come from

4 primarily the respondent, Oeneus?

5       A.      Yes.

6       Q.      And they're doing business as

7 Savatran; is that correct?

8       A.      Yeah.  Savatran, Forsyth.

9       Q.      And so if I say Savatran can we agree

10 that that refers to Oeneus doing business as

11 Savatran?

12       A.      Yes.

13       Q.      That's easier for me to say than

14 Savatran -- or than Oeneus.  Do you propose to --

15 does EVWR propose to construct a new railway near

16 that existing track?

17       A.      Yes.

18       Q.      What's the purpose for that?

19       A.      For the increase in business.

20       Q.      And could you explain what increased

21 business you expect?

22       A.      We expect grain -- there's

23 fertilizer, there's a new fertilizer plant being

24 built in Mt. Vernon, Indiana.  There's multitudes

25 of other, I want to say, things that we haul by
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1 rail that can go that way.

2       Q.      And where is the proposed new track

3 located?

4       A.      It's approximately 15 foot from the

5 center line of the existing connecting track.

6       Q.      And so referring to Exhibit A on the

7 petition and specifically to Page 2 of Exhibit A on

8 the petition where it says existing Track A and

9 there's a solid line, is that the track that's

10 there already?

11       A.      That's the existing track, yes.

12               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  We're going to

13 have to slow down because it's going to take me

14 forever to find things on here because it's so

15 small.  Okay.  So I think I see existing Track A

16 and then what was your other reference point in

17 your question, Mr. Reeves?

18               BY:  MR. REEVES

19       Q.      And if you look just to the right of

20 the center of that document where it says proposed,

21 P-R-O-P, Track C and points to a dotted line just

22 below the solid line, is that where the new

23 proposed track is?

24       A.      That's correct.

25               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And hold on.  You
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1 working from the same 8 and a half by 11 I'm

2 working from?

3               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.  I may have a

4 better...

5               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I don't see

6 proposed --

7               MR. REEVES:  Your Honor, if I may

8 approach I'll provide another copy that may be

9 better.  I'm not sure if it will.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Show me where the word

11 proposed is.  P-R-O-P; is that correct?

12               THE WITNESS:  (Witness nods head.)

13               MR. REEVES:  You have to say yes or

14 no.

15               THE WITNESS:  Yes.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  You're going to have

17 to help me with those things.  I'm looking for the

18 word proposed.

19               BY:  MR. REEVES

20       Q.      So where it says on that exhibit,

21 P-R-O-P, Track C, that is the new track that you

22 propose to build through here?

23       A.      That's correct.

24       Q.      And would that track also cross

25 Liberty Road?
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1       A.      Yes.

2       Q.      Would it cross at the same grade

3 crossing that was previously approved by the

4 Commission?

5       A.      Yes.

6               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Is Liberty Road what's

7 depicted with the north, south section right in

8 between the existing Track A wording and the

9 proposed track wording?

10               THE WITNESS:  Yes.

11               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And whose track

12 is that going northeast, southwest on the left?

13               THE WITNESS:  That's Evansville

14 Western's.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And who's track is

16 that on the right?

17               THE WITNESS:  That is the Norfolk

18 Southern's.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  So when this

20 petition refers to connecting track you're

21 referring to the track affecting EVWR on the left

22 and Norfolk Southern on the right, correct?

23               THE WITNESS:  That is correct.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And then once again

25 this Liberty Road crossing is going right in the
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1 middle, correct?

2               THE WITNESS:  Correct.

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.

4               BY:  MR. REEVES

5       Q.      Now looking, Mr. Buchanan, to the

6 right-hand side of that exhibit, does the existing

7 track and the proposed track come off from one

8 another?

9       A.      They run parallel going to the east.

10 When they -- the track goes all the way around to

11 the NS's main line.  There's two tracks.

12       Q.      Okay.  And that would eventually

13 connect to the Norfolk Southern on the right-hand

14 side of that diagram?

15       A.      That's correct.

16       Q.      Does EVWR own the right-of-way on

17 which the proposed track would go?

18       A.      Yes, it does.

19       Q.      And do you -- does EVWR own the

20 right-of-way of the existing track?

21       A.      Yes, they do.

22       Q.      Is there space for both tracks to be

23 on that right-of-way?

24       A.      Yes.

25       Q.      So it's not necessary for you to
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1 require any other right-of-way in order for you to

2 do this project?

3       A.      No.

4               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I think you can

5 probably go on to your safety issues.

6               BY:  MR. REEVES

7       Q.      Would you tell the Judge what the

8 maximum operating speed for trains on the proposed

9 connecting track would be?

10       A.      Maximum speed of 20 miles per hour.

11       Q.      Approximately how many trains per day

12 would be expected to cross that track?

13       A.      Approximately six.

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  How many?

15               THE WITNESS:  Six.

16               BY:  MR. REEVES

17       Q.      Do you know the traffic count of

18 vehicles across Liberty Road at this crossing per

19 day?

20       A.      Approximately 1,200.

21       Q.      How much of that is truck traffic?

22       A.      Approximately 20 percent.

23               JUDGE DUGGAN:  By truck do you mean

24 heavy truck or semi trucks and trailers?

25               THE WITNESS:  Yes.
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1               BY:  MR. REEVES

2       Q.      What's the speed limit on the road at

3 that location?

4       A.      Fifty-five miles an hour.

5       Q.      Are you aware of any accidents at

6 that crossing in the last five years?

7       A.      No.

8       Q.      Turning to the proposed crossing.

9 Does Exhibit B attached to the petition -- which,

10 your Honor, is immediately following the second

11 page of Exhibit A and consists of approximately

12 five pages.  Does Exhibit B correctly reflect the

13 proposed plans for that crossing?

14       A.      It does, yes.

15       Q.      And has that -- has that proposed

16 second new crossing been prepared in accordance

17 with the regulations of the ICC?

18       A.      When it's installed it would be.

19       Q.      In your experience will a second

20 track at a crossing that is otherwise compliant

21 with what the law requires present any additional

22 safety hazard to the public?

23       A.      I really don't have any statistics on

24 that so I can't answer that yes or no, I don't

25 know.
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1       Q.      Do double grade crossings routinely

2 -- strike that.  Are you aware of existing double

3 grade crossings in the Midwestern area railroad?

4       A.      Yes.

5       Q.      Do you believe they have been proven

6 to be less safe than a single crossing?

7       A.      No.

8       Q.      I believe you mentioned earlier what

9 the crossing will consist of.  What will be

10 required to be added to what is there right now in

11 order for there to be a second track there?

12       A.      We will have to put in a new track

13 and then put in a crossing on top of it.  The

14 crossing will be a composite crossing, which is

15 made of recycled material.  It's one just identical

16 to the one that's already there.

17       Q.      And in your capacity as general

18 manager and vice president of EVWR, have you formed

19 an opinion as to whether the connecting track

20 itself is necessary?

21       A.      I do.

22       Q.      What's that opinion?

23       A.      That's based on the projections that

24 is given to me by people in our company.

25       Q.      And what do those projections show?
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1       A.      Well, as you can see we're looking at

2 -- you can see that it averages about -- this is an

3 exhibit, isn't it?

4       Q.      Yeah.  Are you referring to Exhibit

5 E?

6       A.      Yeah.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Let's go ahead and

8 make it clear -- for the record, all the exhibits

9 you're referring to are simply those attached to

10 the petition.  No separate offers of petition -- of

11 exhibits have been made into evidence; is that

12 fair, Mr. Reeves?

13               MR. REEVES:  That's correct as we sit

14 here, Judge.  I neglected to mention to your Honor

15 that I have asked Counsel; and I believe I have

16 asked all the parties, if they have any objection

17 to admission into evidence of the exhibits that

18 have been submitted.  With the exception of the

19 contract that we talked about earlier I believe

20 every one was in agreement that these can be

21 admitted into evidence and submitted.

22               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.

23               MR. REEVES:  And I would offer

24 Exhibits ^ aa A, B, C, D, E and G into evidence

25 subject to testimony connecting those up in a
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1 little bit.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And do you have

3 separate copies of all of those?

4               MR. REEVES:  We have E-filed those

5 with the Commission.  We do have extra copies.

6               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Then the other

7 thing we need to try to make clear then are all

8 those being offered into evidence in fact identical

9 to the ones you're discussing attached to the

10 petition?

11               THE WITNESS:  Yes.

12               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.  The only ones

13 that are attached to the petition itself are

14 Exhibits A and B which we've already discussed at

15 some length.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  As long as we're clear

17 -- as long as he's made the record that they're

18 identical so that when he's refers to one it's

19 clear that it's the same as referring to the other

20 one that's fine.

21               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.

22               BY:  MR. REEVES

23       Q.      And what information leads you to

24 believe that there will be additional tonnage

25 necessary to be transported on this route?
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1       A.      Well, today we average about 4.2.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  4.2 what?

3               MR. REEVES:  4.2 what?

4               THE WITNESS:  Trains.  I'm sorry,

5 trains a day.  Next year we're projecting 9.7

6 trains a day.  By 2017 -- '17, yes, we're

7 projecting 13 trains a day.  And by 2018 that's

8 going up to 17.4 trains day.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  That's on this

10 connector?

11               THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  Or that's on our

12 railroad, yes.  Not all of it will be there, we

13 haven't got all that broke out.  But that's what's

14 going to -- and that's just coal, that's not

15 anything else.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Probably only thing

17 that's relevant here is the connector.  So if those

18 aren't relevant to the connector then I don't think

19 it's relevant.

20               THE WITNESS:  Okay.  Yes.  That's how

21 many trains there's going to be on our railroad,

22 not necessarily the connecting track.  But a lot of

23 them will be.  But I can't tell you that exactly.

24 These here are projections.

25               BY:  MR. REEVES
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1       Q.      But you do believe that the need for

2 capacity is going to increase?

3       A.      I do.

4       Q.      Why have you said that it is not

5 economically and operationally feasible to use the

6 existing Savatran connector for this traffic?

7       A.      Well, I've tried to show the -- that

8 there's going to be more trains through there.  So

9 that is the operational part of it.  And

10 economically it's just not feasible.

11       Q.      Have you discussed this with your

12 customers?

13       A.      Yes.

14       Q.      And do you believe that they would

15 believe that it's economically feasible to use the

16 existing Savatran connector?

17       A.      No.

18       Q.      And why not?

19       A.      'Cause it's not economically

20 feasible.

21       Q.      Do you believe that the new proposed

22 connector will allow you to provide that service in

23 a way that's economically feasible to your

24 customers?

25       A.      Yep.  Yes.
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1       Q.      And would you ordinarily rely on your

2 customer's statements about their needs in making a

3 decision in constructing the track?

4       A.      Yes.

5       Q.      And has that been part of your

6 decision to do that in this matter?

7       A.      Yes.

8       Q.      Do you believe that the crossing as

9 it has been proposed will protect the safety of

10 both the automobile and the rail traffic across

11 Liberty Road at this location?

12       A.      Yes, I do.

13       Q.      And is that based on your previous

14 experience in the railroad industry?

15       A.      Yes.

16       Q.      And is it based --

17       A.      And also based on that we had one

18 approved by this court not more than two months ago

19 for a double track.

20       Q.      And so you believe you're able to

21 provide a safe crossing for the public and for the

22 rail users?

23       A.      I do.

24       Q.      If this petition was not granted do

25 you believe that the customers that you have
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1 consulted will pay the rates and will use the

2 existing Savatran connector?

3       A.      My opinion is no.

4       Q.      And that is an economic

5 consideration?

6       A.      Yes.

7       Q.      Concerning the train traffic that you

8 anticipate, are those all freight trains?

9       A.      Yes.

10       Q.      Are you aware of any plans by the

11 road authorities to widen Liberty Road?

12       A.      No.

13       Q.      For this project are you requesting

14 any moneys be appropriated from the Grade Crossing

15 Protection Fund?

16       A.      No.

17       Q.      What do you anticipate the cost of

18 constructing the grade crossing to be?

19       A.      Approximately $220,000, 250,

20 somewhere in that neighborhood.

21       Q.      And breaking down that figure,

22 referring to Exhibit C that has been submitted to

23 the Court, what does Exhibit C show?

24       A.      Exhibit C is for the flashers and

25 gates.
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1               JUDGE DUGGAN:  The cost of flashers

2 and gates or what?

3               THE WITNESS:  Yes.  The cost of the

4 flashers and gates.  And that's part of it there.

5               BY:  MR. REEVES

6       Q.      And what is that cost on Exhibit C?

7       A.      78,000.

8       Q.      Would you go through the remaining

9 cost items and indicate what those consist of.

10       A.      Okay.  The first -- the first exhibit

11 is the house, charger, batteries, lightning

12 protector, ground faults, recorders, relays.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Which exhibit are we

14 on now?

15               THE WITNESS:  Exhibit C, I think.

16               MR. REEVES:  We are still on Exhibit

17 C which is a multiple set of cost estimates.

18               THE WITNESS:  This is material for

19 the cross -- for the flashers and gates for the

20 crossing.  The second page is all the wiring,

21 terminals, inspection fees, stuff like -- you know,

22 incidentals.  And this is a list of the billed

23 materials on the third page.  You know, it has some

24 insulated joints in it for the crossing to be set

25 off when a train comes through it.  This has got
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1 the cantilevers and the bell -- or the lights and

2 bells.  It has a multitude of things in here but

3 I'm not going through each and every one of them,

4 it's just not -- you get down -- and if you go back

5 in Exhibit C it's a wiring diagram of how it's

6 going to be -- the first one is where everything is

7 going to be placed at.  Look here a minute.

8               JUDGE DUGGAN:  The diagram is part of

9 C?

10               THE WITNESS:  Yes.  It shows where

11 the flash -- the gates are going to be and where

12 the bungalow's going to be, how they're going to be

13 positioned on the crossing.

14               BY:  MR. REEVES

15       Q.      And does all that -- has that all

16 been prepared and submitted in order to --

17       A.      Yes.

18       Q.      -- comply with the requirements --

19       A.      Yes.

20       Q.      -- of the administrative code for

21 these matters?

22       A.      Yeah.

23       Q.      And who is going to pay the cost of

24 that construction?

25       A.      Evansville Western.  The other
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1 pages -- the next three, four pages, or five pages

2 are schematics -- six pages.  There's a controller

3 on the sixth page that actually operates it all,

4 it's a Savatran, I believe it's 3000.  But this

5 one's able to do a double track rather than a

6 single track that's in there.  And then we go back

7 to the crossing, which is just putting the crossing

8 in, purchasing the crossing and putting the

9 crossing in.

10       Q.      And that last item, $24,000; is that

11 correct?

12       A.      Yeah.

13       Q.      And is that Exhibit D that's been

14 submitted?

15       A.      Yes.

16               MR. REEVES:  Your Honor, I would move

17 that Exhibits A through E be admitted into evidence

18 at this point.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I missed D and E.

20               MR. REEVES:  Those were -- those were

21 the cost estimates for the crossing.  We previously

22 referred to the anticipated new tonnage to come

23 through and that was E.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  A is the

25 overall diagram, B is the construction of the
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1 crossing, C I took to be the estimate for the

2 flashers and gates as well as the design of the

3 flashers and all the systems necessary.  And then I

4 heard nothing of D and E.

5               THE WITNESS:  D is the crossing

6 itself, the composite crossing.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Is that different from

8 what B was?

9               BY:  MR. REEVES

10       Q.      And Mr. Buchanan, again referring to

11 Exhibit D, does that appear to be the materials

12 that are necessary to construct the surface of this

13 crossing?

14       A.      Yes.

15       Q.      And some of the labor costs?

16       A.      Yes.

17               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Is it a diagram or is

18 it cost?

19               THE WITNESS:  We had a diagram of

20 what kind of crossing we were putting in there.

21 Then at -- Exhibit D was actually the cost of the

22 crossing.

23               JUDGE DUGGAN:  See, I don't have a

24 set of these.

25               THE WITNESS:  Here, I got them right
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1 here.  Here.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  If you have a spare,

3 that's fine.

4               MR. REEVES:  Yeah.  That's a separate

5 set.  Yeah.  I'm sorry, Judge, I thought you had

6 them in front of you.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Helps me decide

8 whether the explanation on the record is clear

9 enough or not.

10               MR. REEVES:  I'll be happy to return

11 to the testimony on any of those exhibits if your

12 Honor would require.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So D is the cost of

14 some materials and some of the labor?

15               THE WITNESS:  That is correct.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  But it's not the --

17               THE WITNESS:  Just for the crossing

18 now.  Just for the crossing material.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Well, and what was --

20               THE WITNESS:  The installation of the

21 crossing.

22               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Well, in the testimony

23 I had an estimate of 230 to $250,000.

24               THE WITNESS:  That's with the

25 crossing, flashers, and gates and bungalow,
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1 everything.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I heard 78,000 for the

3 flashers and gates.  So we're about another 150 off

4 that I'm not seeing.

5               THE WITNESS:  Well, that's wrong.

6 It's a double track.  And I just had an estimate

7 done and I know it was $178,000 for a double track.

8               JUDGE DUGGAN:  For the flashers and

9 gates?

10               THE WITNESS:  That's just for the

11 flashers and gates, yes, your Honor.

12               JUDGE DUGGAN:  It says 78.  So you're

13 saying there should be a one in front of that?

14               THE WITNESS:  Yes.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  It's 178?

16               THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  Yes.

17               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  So that still

18 gets you short of your 200,000 total estimate.

19               THE WITNESS:  I estimated.

20               JUDGE DUGGAN:  178,240, that's fine.

21 I'm just trying to make it consistent.

22               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

23               BY:  MR. REEVES

24       Q.      Does that appear to be the correct --

25       A.      Yes.
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1       Q.      -- estimate at this point?

2       A.      Yes.

3       Q.      That may or may not be the actual

4 construction cost when it occurs?

5       A.      Yes.

6               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So you're changing the

7 estimate of what I thought I heard, 250, your

8 testimony, to the total of 178,000 and 25,000 so

9 $203,000; is that correct?  Is that right?

10               THE WITNESS:  No, sir.

11               JUDGE DUGGAN:  No?

12               THE WITNESS:  No, sir.  You got the

13 add the 24,000 in there.

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Well, I said 25 but

15 it's 24,791.

16               THE WITNESS:  Yeah, okay.  25,000

17 plus the 178.

18               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Right.  So that's

19 about $203,000?

20               THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Right?

22               THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

23               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So you want to amend

24 your Exhibit C to just put a total down there of

25 178?
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1               THE WITNESS:  Yes.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Reeves?

3               MR. REEVES:  I would ask for leave to

4 do so, your Honor.

5               JUDGE DUGGAN:  It's not going to add

6 up apparently I'm guessing unless your totals --

7               MR. REEVES:  Yeah.

8               BY:  MR. REEVES

9       Q.      Mr. Buchanan, is that merely an

10 estimate of what you expect this to cost?

11       A.      That is correct.

12       Q.      But EVWR is going to pay all of that

13 cost regardless of what it turns out to be?

14       A.      Yes, sir.

15       Q.      Will you look to any governmental

16 entity or to any other party in this matter as to

17 payment of those costs?

18       A.      No.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Is there a question

20 pending?

21               MR. REEVES:  Judge, there is not.  As

22 amended and qualified though, your Honor, I would

23 move that those exhibits be admitted into evidence.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Did you cover Exhibit

25 E?
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1               MR. REEVES:  Exhibit E was discussed

2 in some prior testimony.

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  He gave

4 previous projections for certain years, Exhibit E

5 refers to tonnage resulting from new mining

6 operation which translates into trains per day.  So

7 I don't recall testimony on that.  Which is fine if

8 you just want to let the exhibit speak for itself

9 and nobody has any objection and represent that if

10 he was asked the questions his responses as stated

11 by Exhibit E would he so testify that would be fine

12 with me.

13               MR. REEVES:  Sure.

14               BY:  MR. REEVES

15       Q.      And is that connect, sir, if called

16 to testify concerning the projected tonnage and

17 number of trains per day on Exhibit E you would

18 testify that those are what your internal

19 projections are for what you anticipate the needs

20 to be on this line?

21       A.      That is correct.

22               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  Okay.  So

23 you're offering A through E?

24               MR. REEVES:  Yes.

25               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Any objection?
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1               MR. FLYNN:  No objection.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Fladhammer?

3               MS. FLADHAMMER:  No objection.

4               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Kuntz?

5               MS. KUNTZ:  No objection.

6               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Toliver?

7               MR. TOLIVER:  No objection, your

8 Honor.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  Exhibits A

10 through E are admitted into evidence.

11               BY:  MR. REEVES

12       Q.      Mr. Buchanan, will the new track and

13 the second crossing at Liberty Road affect the

14 existing Savatran connector in any way?

15       A.      None.

16       Q.      Will it obstruct the service on that

17 line?

18       A.      No.

19       Q.      Will it connect to it at any point?

20       A.      No.

21       Q.      Are you aware of any contractual

22 provision between EVWR and any other entity that

23 would prevent you from constructing this track and

24 from seeking the approval of this crossing at

25 Liberty Road?
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1       A.      No.

2               MR. REEVES:  I believe those are all

3 the questions I have, your Honor.

4               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Very good.

5 Does anybody need a break before I ask some

6 questions?  You look like you're ready but

7 unfortunately I'm going to ask some questions

8 first.

9               MR. FLYNN:  Your Honor, I'm -- if you

10 want to take a break there's no objection.

11               JUDGE DUGGAN:  No, I'm fine.  Just

12 want to give the opportunity here.  And so I hate

13 to do this to everybody but unfortunately, yeah, I

14 need to fill in some cracks so I can have the

15 information I need have to draft an order.

16               CROSS EXAMINATION

17 QUESTIONS BY JUDGE DUGGAN:

18       Q.      The connections on either end, are

19 they going to connect with the -- is the connector

20 track going to connect with the EVWR track and the

21 NS track at a different point than the existing

22 Savatran track?

23       A.      Yes.

24       Q.      Okay.  And I assume that's common,

25 there's plenty of devices to control trains so that
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1 they're not both --

2       A.      Yes.

3       Q.      -- connecting at the same time; is

4 that correct?

5       A.      Yes.

6       Q.      Okay.  And once again, try to remind

7 you even if you understand where my question is

8 going if you could hesitate before you answer.

9       A.      Sorry.

10       Q.      Okay.  Thank you.  What part of the

11 area of Mt. Vernon is this on, south, north, east,

12 west?

13       A.      It is east.

14       Q.      The east side of Mt. Vernon?

15       A.      Uh-huh.

16       Q.      And what is Liberty Road, is that a

17 two lane tar and chip road, what kind of road is

18 it?

19       A.      Yes.

20       Q.      Is it even lined for lanes?

21       A.      No.

22       Q.      And I think you referred to the

23 existing crossing as composite?

24       A.      Composite.

25       Q.      What's that mean?
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1       A.      It's recycled material.

2       Q.      What's it look like?

3       A.      It is a very hard surface.  It almost

4 looks like wood maybe only a little different

5 color.  But it's very hard, very durable.

6       Q.      Does it come in sections?

7       A.      Eight foot sections.

8       Q.      And the crossing service, existing

9 crossing service, is entirely composite; is that

10 correct?

11       A.      That is correct.

12       Q.      And the proposed crossing surface

13 will be of the same type of composite surface; is

14 that correct?

15       A.      That is correct.

16       Q.      Where's the Sugar Camp coal mine, if

17 you know?

18       A.      Yeah.  It is south of McLeansboro,

19 Illinois.  It's between McLeansboro and Benton,

20 Illinois.

21       Q.      What about Georgia Power, where is

22 that?

23       A.      That's down in Atlanta.  They have

24 several different plants down in the southeast.

25       Q.      Okay.  You say you're carrying things
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1 from or to Georgia Power?

2       A.      We load coal at Sugar Camp and give

3 it to the NS to take to Georgia Power.

4       Q.      Okay.  You talked about an increase

5 in the need based upon grain and fertilizer from a

6 new plant in Mt. Vernon, Indiana I believe and then

7 on your Exhibit E you talk about tonnage.  Mr.

8 Reeves had already represented something about

9 barge traffic.  So on the coal -- is there another

10 coal mine opening up?

11       A.      There is a coal mine that opened up

12 two weeks ago.  And on the Evansville Western we

13 have two rail to barge facilities that actually

14 take coal from barges -- ore from railcars, I'm

15 sorry, to barges.

16       Q.      When you say that you have them, you

17 mean they're already in operation, the two barges?

18       A.      Yes, sir.

19       Q.      Okay.  Is there an increase in the

20 number of barges or is the increase due to the one

21 new coal mine?

22       A.      The one new coal mine helps, yes, but

23 it's just been increasing gradually for the past

24 two years.

25       Q.      You mean the production from that
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1 coal mine or from the previous coal mines?

2       A.      Oh, yes.  This was a new coal mine

3 too, the Sugar Creek -- or Savatran.

4       Q.      Okay.  Savatran owns coal?

5       A.      Sir?  What did you just say?

6 Savatran, they have a coal mine also, which is

7 called Sugar Camp.

8       Q.      And you say their production has been

9 increasing?

10       A.      Yes.

11       Q.      And you serve other coal mines that

12 use this connecting route?

13       A.      Yes.

14       Q.      Approximately how many?

15       A.      Let me back up and say we don't at

16 this time, no.

17       Q.      Okay.  So right now the connecting

18 route is for purposes, among other things, of

19 serving Savatran's Sugar Camp coal mine, correct?

20       A.      That's right.

21       Q.      And increasing production there?

22       A.      Correct.

23       Q.      And your traffic has been increasing

24 accordingly?

25       A.      Yes.
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1       Q.      And then a new coal mine opened and

2 what do we call that?

3       A.      White Oaks.

4       Q.      And is EV -- is your coal mine

5 servicing -- hauling coal from White Oaks?

6       A.      Yes, sir.

7       Q.      And is it using the connector route

8 to do that?

9       A.      Not at this time.

10       Q.      Is it intended that it will be?

11       A.      Could be.  Don't know that for sure

12 yet.

13       Q.      So the White Oaks is not a driving

14 force behind this new line, connector line?

15       A.      Yes and no.  We don't know that for

16 sure yet.

17       Q.      Okay.  So your Exhibit E, the

18 increased mining tons, are based upon what source

19 for the cargo?  Okay.  Exhibit E said and your

20 testimony said that you're going to have more

21 tonnage, right?

22       A.      Yes, sir.

23       Q.      Okay.  Exhibit E focuses solely on

24 new mining camps, correct?

25       A.      Yes, sir.
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1       Q.      And projections are in there about

2 increases in mining tons, correct?

3       A.      That is correct.

4       Q.      Which translates into more trains per

5 day, correct?

6       A.      Correct.

7       Q.      What is the source of the increased

8 tonnage, is it --

9       A.      It is the new coal mine, White Oaks

10 and --

11               THE WITNESS:  Maybe you can help me

12 here because I know they want to be as known as

13 Forsyth.  Is that who I should be saying or should

14 I be saying Savatran when I talk about their coal

15 mine?

16               BY:  JUDGE DUGGAN

17       Q.      Well, I'm aware of a new one called

18 White Oaks so I'm not sure that would be a basis of

19 your projections and then some increased from Sugar

20 Camp.  Now you're referring to something called

21 Forsyth.  I don't know if that's a third one or is

22 it one of the others we've already talked about?

23       A.      No.  It's one -- we've already talked

24 about it.  You misunderstood me.  There is coal

25 being loaded at White Oaks now, just started in the
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1 last two weeks.

2       Q.      So once again, Exhibit E does not

3 necessarily refer to connector traffic it refers to

4 petitioner's train traffic which is not necessarily

5 going to use the connector track?

6       A.      That's correct.

7       Q.      Okay.  So the White Oaks traffic is

8 using partially for the projections even though it

9 may not be -- use the connector, correct?

10       A.      Say that again, sir.

11       Q.      Okay.  The White Oaks mine is being

12 used -- its production is being used for the

13 projections in Exhibit E, correct?

14       A.      Some of it, yes.

15       Q.      I understand.  Some of it, not all of

16 it?

17       A.      Right.

18       Q.      But Exhibit E does not necessarily

19 mean it's going to be used on the connector line?

20       A.      Yes, that's correct.

21       Q.      Okay.  And Forsyth, is that a

22 different mine than White Oaks and Sugar Camp?

23       A.      It's different from White Oaks but

24 it's not different from Sugar Camp.

25       Q.      Is it the same as Sugar Camp?
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1               THE WITNESS:  Help me here, I don't

2 know.  I'm sorry.

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  You're welcome to help

4 clarify, Mr. Reeves, so we can move on here.

5               MR. REEVES:  Yeah.  Sir, do you

6 believe that --

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Well, why don't you --

8 somebody explain it to me, tell me what the problem

9 is.

10               THE WITNESS:  They own more companies

11 than just one, they have multitude of companies.

12 So Sugar Camp -- I'm not sure which company of

13 theirs owns Sugar Camp.  So we call them Forsyth,

14 which is Sugar Camp's mine.  Sugar Camp is the mine

15 name, Forsyth's the ones that owns it.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  What does it have to

17 do with Forsyth?

18               THE WITNESS:  Boy, I sure opened up a

19 can of worms here.

20               MR. REEVES:  Okay.  Here's the deal.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Reeves, this may

22 not be vitally important but I'd like to make sense

23 out of it.

24               MR. REEVES:  Sure.

25               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I don't want to spend
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1 a long time here but hopefully it wouldn't take

2 that long to make sense out of it.  In your opening

3 statement or your presentation last time he's

4 saying they don't have additional barges and

5 additional product, he's saying they have addition

6 product which is apparently for the new mine which

7 isn't going to go on the connector route and then

8 some other mine which may or may not be the same or

9 may be an umbrella organization and somehow related

10 to Savatran and I don't understand any of it.

11               MR. REEVES:  Okay.  Let me back up.

12 Mr. Buchanan, the existing Savatran connector is

13 serving a coal mine that's owned by Savatran or is

14 one of their connected entities?

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Excuse me, sir.

16 You're welcome to clarify.  If you don't understand

17 then we probably don't want to spend a lot of time

18 trying to unconfuse Mr. Buchanan.

19               MR. REEVES:  It may be simpler than

20 it sounds.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Once again, Mr.

22 Reeves, do you know the answer to the question?

23 Just tell me you don't know.

24               MR. REEVES:  I do not know, by my

25 personal knowledge, how to exactly clarify what
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1 that testimony about whose coal is whose.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Well, let me go

3 on and at some point maybe you guys can go out and

4 figure out the answer to this question and you can

5 come back, Mr. Reeves, and explain it to me.  Okay.

6 If no one objects to him talking to his witness.

7               Again, you know, certain

8 representations are made and I try to write an

9 order based upon the need as represented to me and

10 if that's not accurate, it's different than the

11 testimony, it gets confusing.  And if that's not

12 what the evidence is then let's be clear about what

13 it is and what it's not so the order doesn't

14 misrepresent things.

15               BY:  JUDGE DUGGAN

16       Q.      Mr. Buchanan, you did say that while

17 all the projections you testified to would not be

18 using the connection, it is true, as I heard you

19 say, that a large percentage of it would; is that

20 correct?

21       A.      That's correct.  May I say something,

22 your Honor?

23       Q.      Well, you talk to Mr. Reeves and see

24 if you need to say something or not because I don't

25 want you to be telling stuff he didn't want you to
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1 say, okay?

2       A.      Okay.

3       Q.      The -- what protective devices are at

4 the crossing now?

5       A.      Flashers, bells, and gates.

6       Q.      And how will that change if there are

7 -- if there's an additional track?

8       A.      There will be a -- there'll be some

9 electronic changes inside a new bungalow that will

10 have to protect two tracks and one of the flashers

11 will need -- will be moved or has been moved.

12       Q.      One side of the --

13       A.      Yes, sir.

14       Q.      One side of the protective devices

15 would be moved out to accommodate the different

16 distance, correct?

17       A.      Yes, sir.

18               MR. REEVES:  All right.  I think

19 that's all I have.  Mr. Flynn.

20               MR. FLYNN:  Your Honor, you covered

21 many of the questions I was going to ask so thank

22 you.

23               CROSS EXAMINATION

24 QUESTIONS BY MR. FLYNN:

25       Q.      Mr. Buchanan, I just had a few
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1 clarification questions.  The crossing in question

2 here is Liberty Road, correct?

3       A.      That's correct.

4       Q.      And there's also reference in the

5 petition that it's also sometimes referred to as

6 County Road 1250 North, would that be right?

7       A.      That's right.

8       Q.      So when we say County Road 1250

9 North, Liberty Road it's the same roadway and that

10 would be the same crossing we're talking about

11 here, correct?

12       A.      Yes.

13       Q.      Again, the crossing that we're -- the

14 crossing which is the subject matter of this

15 proceeding was authorized to be created by the

16 Illinois Commerce Commission in an order entered

17 March 10th -- excuse me, 9th, 2011, correct?

18       A.      Correct.

19       Q.      This crossing's been in existence

20 about two and a half years?

21       A.      That's correct.

22       Q.      Okay.  You indicated that the -- that

23 there's automatic flashing light signals and gates

24 that currently protect the existing crossing,

25 correct?
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1       A.      That's correct.

2       Q.      Is it also -- is constant warning

3 time circuitry also used at this crossing?

4       A.      That's correct.

5       Q.      That's existing now and that will

6 continue to be as projected for the new set of

7 tracks?

8       A.      That's correct.

9       Q.      There's been a lot of testimony and

10 questions about number of trains so I'll ask the

11 question this way.  Currently there's one set of

12 tracks through the Liberty Road crossing in

13 question, correct?

14       A.      That is correct.

15       Q.      How many trains per day average go

16 through that particular crossing, if you know?

17       A.      Approximately four.

18       Q.      If the Commission enters the petition

19 as filed and there is a second set of tracks that

20 are installed and operations are conducted as

21 contemplated how many trains per day will go

22 through the crossing at that point upon completion?

23       A.      Approximately six.

24       Q.      Six.  So the reference to Exhibit E

25 deals with a lot of trains which may or may not go
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1 through the crossing which is the subject matter of

2 today's proceeding?

3       A.      That's correct.

4       Q.      Thank you.

5               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Before we move on.  I

6 thought your question, his response was that if

7 this track was -- the proposed track were built

8 that there'd be six trains per day.  Is that what

9 was asked and answered?  If so, because -- let the

10 record show that he both indicated that

11 approximately six but the previous testimony was

12 9.7 trains a day, which is consistent with the

13 Exhibit E.  So Mr. Reeves, you want to clarify

14 whether it's six or 9.7 or whether the question was

15 asked differently or misunderstood?

16               MR. REEVES:  Your Honor, I think the

17 9.7 figure came from our projections for the

18 future, which may or may not come to pass.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Right.  But maybe he

20 meant six more which add up to ten but I don't

21 know.

22               THE WITNESS:  No.  In 2014 I feel

23 like it will be -- I'm wrong.  Okay.  9.7.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  So you would

25 like to amend your answer to Mr. Flynn; is that
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1 correct?

2               THE WITNESS:  I was looking -- I'm

3 sorry.  It was 9.7.

4               JUDGE DUGGAN:  But you're correcting

5 or changing an answer that -- to a question asked

6 of you by Mr. Flynn; is that correct?

7               THE WITNESS:  No.  Let's back up.

8               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.

9               THE WITNESS:  Okay.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Let's go off the

11 record.  Let's figure this out.  If it's okay I'd

12 rather not have a ten page discussion of trying to

13 figure out what's going on here.

14               (WHEREIN, a discussion was held off

15               the record.)

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Back on the record.

17 Off the record we verified to the extent necessary

18 or reaffirmed that Mr. Flynn's question was

19 directed to and asked him how many trains would be

20 going through the subject crossing in a year after

21 the proposed -- if the proposed track, additional

22 track was added and his answer was six.  And the

23 reason that that answer is six whereas his

24 testimony with regard to future traffic growth that

25 he was given as well as Exhibit E refers to 9.7
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1 trains in 2014 and that's because that's referring

2 exclusively and solely to the crossing, whereas

3 Exhibits E and the other projected testimonies are

4 projected to all the petitioner's traffic in the

5 area and not just the track; is that fair, Mr.

6 Reeves?

7               THE WITNESS:  Yes.

8               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Buchanan?

10               THE WITNESS:  Yes.

11               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Fladhammer?

12               MS. FLADHAMMER:  That's my

13 understanding.

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Flynn?

15               MR. FLYNN:  Yes.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Kuntz?

17               MS. KUNTZ:  Yes, your Honor.

18               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Toliver?

19               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, your Honor.

20               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.

21               BY:  MR. FLYNN

22       Q.      Mr. Buchanan, the -- all of the costs

23 of the proposed improvements here will be borne by

24 the petitioner and no other party, correct?

25       A.      That is correct.
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1               MR. FLYNN:  Thank you, your Honor.  I

2 have no further questions.  Thank you, Mr.

3 Buchanan.

4               BY:  MR. REEVES

5       Q.      That includes all -- any of the

6 approach work done, the approach work has to be

7 done by road authorities the Railroad will

8 reimburse them for that work; is that correct?

9       A.      That is correct, your Honor.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Fladhammer?

11               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Thank you.

12               CROSS EXAMINATION

13 QUESTIONS BY MS. FLADHAMMER:

14       Q.      I'm not trying to beat a dead horse

15 here.  So the six trains total would be an increase

16 of two trains; is that correct?

17       A.      That's correct.

18       Q.      And to your knowledge -- let me ask

19 this.  Did you inquire as to Savatran whether or

20 not they could handle that increased two train

21 capacity?

22       A.      I did not.

23       Q.      Do you know whether or not anybody

24 from Evansville Western Railroad inquired of them?

25       A.      I do not.
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1       Q.      Do you know whether or not anyone

2 from Evansville Western Railroad analyzed or

3 determined whether the existing connecting track

4 would be sufficient to handle future

5 transportation?

6       A.      We looked at it and from the

7 projections I thought there needed to be another

8 track.

9       Q.      Okay.  Who specifically looked at it?

10       A.      Pardon?

11       Q.      Who specifically looked at it?

12       A.      I did.

13       Q.      Was a study conducted?

14       A.      No.

15       Q.      Okay.  Now, you said that in part of

16 petition that it wasn't economically and

17 operationally feasible to use Savatran connector;

18 is that correct?

19       A.      That's correct.

20       Q.      Okay.  And do you know whether or not

21 anyone approached Savatran to discuss using that

22 connector for non-Savatran service?

23       A.      I do not.

24       Q.      Did you contact anyone from Savatran?

25       A.      I did not.
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1       Q.      And when you say that it's

2 economically not feasible to use that track, are

3 you basically saying that based on the prior

4 agreement with Savatran it's not efficient for your

5 future clients to use that track?

6       A.      I would like to able to take a

7 recess.

8               MR. REEVES:  You have to answer her

9 question.

10               THE WITNESS:  I can tell you I've

11 been told that.

12               BY:  MS. FLADHAMMER

13       Q.      And who have you been told that by?

14       A.      Other carriers.

15       Q.      So the need for this additional track

16 is financial and not due to capacity; is that

17 correct?

18       A.      No, that's not correct.  It's for

19 both.

20       Q.      The increase in capacity from the

21 four trains to the six trains, will that include

22 your current company's -- or mines that you

23 transport coal for, being Hillsboro, Macoupin and

24 Sugar Camp?

25       A.      Yes.  They will increase, yes.
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1       Q.      And Savatran is not a coal company,

2 is it?

3       A.      I'm not sure.  I don't know.

4               MS. FLADHAMMER:  I have no other

5 additional questions.

6               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Ms. Kuntz?

7               MS. KUNTZ:  Nothing at this time,

8 your Honor.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I'm sorry?

10               MS. KUNTZ:  Nothing at this time.

11               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  Mr.

12 Toliver?

13               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, your Honor.  I

14 guess I have a few questions here for Mr. Buchanan.

15               CROSS EXAMINATION

16 QUESTIONS BY MR. TOLIVER:

17       Q.      The existing crossing of what is

18 Savatran's track currently and, I guess, operated

19 by Evansville Western, that location has a specific

20 crossing identification number with the American

21 Association of Railroads, the FRA, or the USDOT.

22 Is 938553R the identification of that crossing?

23       A.      I cannot honestly tell you that right

24 now, I do not have that written down.

25               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Can we do this?  Can
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1 you read the number back one more time, Mr.

2 Toliver?

3               MR. TOLIVER:  Sure.  938553R.

4               JUDGE DUGGAN:  All right.  And did

5 you obtain the information as the basis of that

6 question from Commission records or the United

7 States DOT records?

8               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, your Honor.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  If you had to

10 make a representation would you represent that that

11 is in fact the identifying number?

12               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, your Honor.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Would anybody

14 like to stipulate to that or anyone object to

15 challenge -- you want a chance to check that out,

16 Mr. Reeves?

17               MR. REEVES:  If that's Mr. Toliver's

18 representation.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I think he's handing

20 you a document.  So if you guys could look at that

21 and see if that's something we can stipulate to

22 that could move us along.

23               THE WITNESS:  Yes, that's it.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So your testimony,

25 based upon reviewing the USDOT printout, Mr.
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1 Toliver, --

2               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, your Honor.

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  -- you're able to

4 identify the location and the corresponding

5 inventory number, correct, Mr. Buchanan?

6               THE WITNESS:  Correct.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And confirm that the

8 number he in fact read is in fact the number?

9               THE WITNESS:  Yes, your Honor.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.

11               MR. TOLIVER:  I guess I would correct

12 myself and say it is the ICC's inventory that is

13 supplied by the USDOT, FRA.

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  With that

15 correction, Mr. Buchanan, does your testimony

16 remain the same?

17               THE WITNESS:  It does, yes, sir.

18               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Very good.

19               BY:  MR. TOLIVER

20       Q.      Okay.  And so does the proposed

21 addition of the second track create a separate

22 crossing that would have a separate number or is it

23 contained within Crossing Number 938553R?

24       A.      It is contained within that number.

25       Q.      So there will be one set of warning
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1 devices for both tracks?

2       A.      Correct.

3       Q.      The tracks facing between the two

4 tracks, I'm looking at the Exhibit B, it says 15

5 feet track centers; is that correct?

6       A.      That is correct.

7       Q.      Okay.  And you have stated that the

8 crossing currently has constant warning time

9 circuitry, lights and gates and bells and it will

10 continue to have constant warning time circuitry

11 with lights, gates and bells, correct?

12       A.      Yes.  And flash -- and gates.

13       Q.      Yes.  Okay.  As far as the new

14 connecting track or the existing connecting track,

15 will the addition of the second track cause there

16 to be simultaneous movement of trains on the

17 separate tracks, will there be any point where the

18 two trains could be approaching on the separate

19 tracks at the same time?

20       A.      I'm not going to say no completely.

21 But it would be unlikely.  But it could -- I mean,

22 it could happen at some point in time.

23       Q.      So there would be a possibility that

24 a train coming off of Evansville Western's single

25 main line track and a train coming off of Norfolk
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1 Southern's single main line track could

2 simultaneously move on these two tracks and

3 approach the crossing at the same time?

4       A.      It could happen.

5       Q.      Okay.  Is there any contemplated

6 usage of the B track as a storage or siding where

7 that the -- where there would be parked railcars?

8       A.      No.

9       Q.      Okay.  So there would never be a

10 situation where the railcars would be --

11       A.      It would only be unless it was

12 emergency situation.

13       Q.      Okay.  In the case of an emergency

14 would there be any kind of operating rule or

15 anything observed as to the distance from the

16 crossing that the railcars would be placed and

17 stopped?

18       A.      We'd have an -- we'd have an

19 operating rule that says that any time you have a

20 crossing that you have to cut for some reason you

21 have to be 200 foot from the crossing.

22       Q.      Okay.  And I understand that.  And I

23 guess I would ask the question if the -- well, the

24 Illinois Administrative Code, for the purposes of

25 unauthorized signs and billboards and obstructions
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1 on the right-of-way, requires a 500 foot rule for

2 the clearing of brush and trees and this is not

3 applicable to railcars.  But would Evansville

4 Western have any objection to observing a 500 foot

5 clear span?

6       A.      No.

7       Q.      Okay.  Now, I guess I understood

8 earlier there was some testimony that the existing

9 roadway does not have pavement markings; is that

10 correct?

11       A.      That's correct.

12       Q.      Now, are you referring to the entire

13 length of the road or are you referring to the part

14 that was previously improved under the ICC order

15 that established this crossing?

16       A.      I'm talking about the dotted line in

17 between, that's what I was referring to that we see

18 on the highway.  We put -- last time put railroad

19 approaches to it and put up approach signs for the

20 railroad.

21       Q.      So it has the RXR -- what we refer to

22 as RXR pavement markings and everything currently

23 at this crossing and signage as required by the

24 Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and the

25 Illinois Administrative Code?
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1       A.      Yes.

2       Q.      It currently does have those and it

3 will continue to have those?

4       A.      Yes.

5       Q.      Okay.  Now, I guess the only other

6 point of clarification that I have is the -- also

7 on the Exhibit B that says Liberty Road Plan and

8 Profile, that was admitted and has Drawing Number

9 RD-01.  That shows some modifications that are

10 going to be made to the approach, what would be the

11 east approach to the crossing; is that correct?

12       A.      That's correct.

13       Q.      And that would involve essentially

14 raising up the pavement's center line and the

15 pavement itself to -- I guess the purpose was to

16 comply with the Illinois Administrative Code and

17 any other requirements that might be desired by the

18 Highway Authority; is that correct?

19       A.      That is correct.

20       Q.      So -- and I believe Mr. Moore

21 testified that he had no objection to those

22 modifications as presented on that -- on that

23 Exhibit RD-01, to my recollection.

24               And I guess finally, there was some

25 mention of widening of the crossing and that the
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1 crossing and the road would not be widened.  I

2 guess I'm misunderstanding -- I mean, as shown on

3 the plans it doesn't appear that there is any

4 widening proposed.  But the petition allegation

5 number -- I'm sorry, I'm going to have to take a

6 look here.  I'm losing it in here, I'm sorry.

7 Yeah, Number 26.  It says the Commission should

8 grant this petition because it would promote public

9 safety and the track will allow for more efficient

10 flow of traffic.  And then it goes on to say that

11 Evansville Western understands there are plans to

12 widen Liberty Road at the crossing -- or at the

13 location of the proposed grade crossing.  And I

14 guess I'm -- can you expound a little bit on that?

15       A.      Yes.  If you -- if you will go out

16 and look at that today, I put a wider crossing in

17 for the first time and we'll make it the same as it

18 was -- actually there's probably four foot on each

19 side that's not a crossing.  And we've got the

20 gates between there and the crossing where it can't

21 be used but it gives more width at the crossing.

22       Q.      So you're talking about the crossing

23 surface not the roadway?  You're talking just

24 specifically the crossing surface is wider so that

25 it extends farther beyond the roadway shoulder?
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1       A.      That is correct.

2       Q.      And the safety benefit of that, can

3 you explain?

4       A.      Well, you know, I don't know that

5 there really is one.  It's -- we put it in that

6 way.  I think we put it in before we did the

7 flashers and we wanted to make sure that we had

8 enough to take care of the crossing -- or the

9 flashers and the road once the flashers got put in.

10 So we probably put in a little bit longer crossing

11 than we needed to.

12       Q.      Okay.  Yeah.  And just, I guess, as

13 an aside there, my understanding of that is that

14 the Illinois Administrative Code explains that

15 there should be the width of the roadway plus a

16 usable shoulder, reasonable width of usable

17 shoulder that so that the crossing surface should

18 not be just exactly the width as the road but

19 should be a little bit wider than the road to just

20 give a little bit of a margin of error, I guess,

21 for wide equipment and things that are crossing the

22 crossing, would that be a fair representation?

23       A.      It would be, yes, sir.

24       Q.      Okay.  And again, there are no moneys

25 being requested from the Grade Crossing Protection
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1 Fund or any other source other than Evansville

2 Western for this crossing improvement -- or

3 addition, I guess, of a track through the crossing?

4       A.      No, sir.

5       Q.      Okay.  And I -- one more thing I

6 guess.  The track that currently exists I

7 understand is Savatran's track and the testimony

8 was that it is on right-of-way owned by Evansville

9 Western.  Are the warning devices that are

10 currently there, are they owned and maintained by

11 Evansville Western or are they owned and maintained

12 by Savatran?

13       A.      They are owned by Savatran and we

14 maintain them.

15       Q.      Okay.  And you are proposing to use

16 their -- the warning devices they own for --

17       A.      No.  Plan on -- I have purchased a

18 new bungalow and a new crossing, flashers, and gate

19 to put in there.

20       Q.      So you will replace the Savatran

21 owned equipment with equipment entirely owned by --

22       A.      Evansville.

23       Q.      -- Evansville Western?  And

24 Evansville Western will maintain that equipment in

25 perpetuity?
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1       A.      Yes.

2               MR. TOLIVER:  That's all I have, your

3 Honor.

4               CROSS EXAMINATION

5 QUESTIONS BY JUDGE DUGGAN:

6       Q.      Have you discussed replacing

7 Savatran's equipment with your own, the safety

8 warning devices?

9       A.      No.  But they belong to them.

10       Q.      Well, I understand.  So you're --

11 presumably the order requires Savatran to have

12 those warning devices, the order that allowed the

13 prior crossing.  If Savatran's owning them and

14 you're maintaining them I guess we'd have to see

15 what the existing order provides.  But -- anybody

16 have that handy?

17       A.      We maintain -- we maintain the

18 flashers, we maintain the track, and we dispatch

19 the track.

20               MR. TOLIVER:  Your Honor, the docket

21 number for that is referenced in the petition and

22 it was Docket Number T10-0153.

23               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Some people

24 look like they might have the order.  Is there any

25 chance here?  Mr. Reeves says no.
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1               MS. FLADHAMMER:  I do not.

2               MR. REEVES:  What was that number

3 again?

4               MR. FLYNN:  T10-0153.

5               JUDGE DUGGAN:  You think you might be

6 able to bring that up there, Mr. Flynn?  Let's go

7 off the record for a second.

8               (WHEREIN, a discussion was held off

9               the record.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Back on the record.

11 First thing we'll note is that off the record we

12 looked at that -- the order just -- initial order

13 allowing this new crossing.  And it does, in fact,

14 provide that Savatran will design and install the

15 flashing lights and gate system and that EVWR would

16 maintain them.  So I do think that if this is --

17 the actual track is granted that that's got to be

18 acknowledged and modified.

19               And I think there's -- if for

20 whatever reason Savatran is ordered to design and

21 install before I don't know that they wouldn't

22 still have to have some responsibility here.  I've

23 seen one case where we had two different railroads

24 -- rail carriers side-by-side and they jointly

25 designed their system apparently and then each one
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1 maintained one side of it.  So are you going to

2 have a recommendation on that or thoughts, Mr.

3 Toliver?

4               MR. TOLIVER:  I believe the warning

5 devices should be maintained by a licensed rail

6 carrier.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Maintained.  I think

8 there would be no question that they would -- that

9 any warning devices here would be maintained by

10 petitioner because petitioner's already ordered to

11 maintain the existing device and when they have a

12 track that shouldn't detract from their

13 responsibilities.  So maintenance to me would be

14 petitioner's -- continuing petitioner's.  But the

15 design and install responsibility is what I'm

16 asking about.  Because presumably -- maybe they're

17 not changing it on the other side or not but I

18 think when you're changing it, especially because

19 they're widening the road, they're planning on

20 moving this stuff.

21               MR. TOLIVER:  Right.  The -- I guess

22 our position would be the crossing owner, operator

23 -- the crossing owner, in terms of the -- I believe

24 the right-of-way that it sits on is -- the property

25 owner is Evansville Western.  So if they're going
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1 to -- I guess if they're saying we will design and

2 maintain and totally take total ownership of the

3 warning device then that would be a more ideal

4 arrangement than having separate ownership of one

5 signal and gate unit, you know, and one signal

6 house and another signal gate unit and another

7 signal house.

8               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Yeah.  You wouldn't

9 have two separate devices but you might have a

10 jointly designed device.

11               THE WITNESS:  We designed the first

12 one, sir.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  At their request.  But

14 the order required them to do it.  The fact that

15 they agreed to do it was between you guys.

16               THE WITNESS:  Right.

17               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.

18               THE WITNESS:  And we had to get our

19 permission through the ICC, whoever did it.

20               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Well, you're not going

21 to grasp what I'm trying to say so I'm not going to

22 try to tell you.  There's a difference between what

23 the ICC orders and what you guys agree to.  The

24 prior order required Savatran to install -- or to

25 design and install the warning device and for EW to
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1 maintain them.  Whatever else you did was between

2 you guys by contract, the responsibility was

3 allocated that way.  And I don't know -- as long as

4 Savatran still owns these tracks I can't remember

5 what the -- I'd have to read the order to find out

6 what the relationship between them was such that we

7 told Evansville Western to do something.  If you're

8 not messing with the tracks, I don't know.

9               MR. TOLIVER:  They were -- as I

10 recall they basically came as joint petitioners and

11 Savatran was paying for everything so they were

12 ordered to pay to have the design of this -- the

13 warning devices completed and submit the paperwork

14 to the ICC for approval.  And then Evansville

15 Western, as the rail carrier who was going to

16 operate over the crossing, being a --

17               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Under what authority?

18 Under what authority?  Did they lease it from

19 Savatran?

20               MR. TOLIVER:  It was a joint

21 arrangement.  I guess, based on the testimony, that

22 they owned the property it was on and that the

23 track was on the --

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Yeah.

25               MR. TOLIVER:  -- on Evansville
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1 Western's property.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Well, here's

3 the deal.  We're guessing and we need not to guess.

4 It may very well be that they agreed to everything.

5 But we're going to have to look at it.  Obviously

6 we're not going to have an agreement here as to

7 what the property responsibilities, should this be

8 added.  So you're going to need time to think about

9 that recommendation and I'm going to try to look at

10 an old -- try to remember an old order.  But again,

11 everything was agreed.

12               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Well, your Honor.

13 What I was going to say was I guess if your Honor

14 is contemplating obligating Savatran to additional

15 moneys for a new crossing that raises a whole new

16 objection for us on this.

17               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Well, let's

18 suggest that they're going to be responsible for

19 all costs.  We can order you to do things and them

20 to reimburse you, okay?

21               MS. FLADHAMMER:  I guess I would

22 agree -- or I would also say that that goes to the

23 removal of the current things.  We would not feel

24 that we should be obligated to pay for that --

25               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Well, I'm sure --
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1               MS. FLADHAMMER:  -- if this were

2 allowed.

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Yeah.  I'm sure that

4 the cost -- that they're going to agree to pay

5 whatever costs there are.  But as I was saying to

6 Mr. Buchanan, there's an allocation of

7 responsibilities and allocations of

8 responsibilities, whatever you want to agree to as

9 long as you understand what your responsibilities

10 are by order of the Commission.  So I think without

11 hesitation I can tell you that they're going to

12 agree to costs and if he didn't --

13               MR. REEVES:  Yes, we will certainly,

14 your Honor.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So the objection on

16 that part is not a problem.  I appreciate you

17 raising it.  I think the problem is what the proper

18 allocation of responsibilities is.  And so as I

19 said the only time I had something like that before

20 the parties agreed to it and each one simply took

21 their side, you know.  They obviously had to

22 jointly design it because you can't design one

23 independent of the other.  So possibly Mr. Toliver

24 can research that and -- I don't have enough

25 information right now to make that order.
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1               MR. TOLIVER:  I mean, they're not

2 proposing it to increase the speed that the trains

3 are operating on Savatran's track, that should not

4 require any change to the location of the joints or

5 anything like that that cause the crossing to

6 activate on their track, it should not cause any

7 change to the wiring that goes to the signal house

8 to trigger the warning devices.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  They have a whole

10 design here for a system with cost and I believe

11 they're designing -- they suggested a couple of

12 times that it's designed for a two track crossing.

13 So apparently there's some difference in some new

14 design.

15               MR. TOLIVER:  As I understand it,

16 it's a matter of -- there's -- most grade crossing

17 control cabinets and computer control equipment

18 have different -- they have plug-ins basically,

19 okay.  Now, if there's a second track in here all

20 there is there's a second input.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  No matter how simple

22 it is somebody's got to -- there's some change to

23 be made, agreed?

24               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes.

25               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Somebody's got
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1 to be responsible for that change and submission to

2 the Commission and approval?

3               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes.

4               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Commission's still got

5 to approve it, right?

6               MR. TOLIVER:  That's correct.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And aside from

8 the circuitry -- they keep talking about their own

9 new cabinet, okay.  They want to put up their own

10 equipment.

11               THE WITNESS:  We would give theirs

12 back, we would put everything into one.

13               JUDGE DUGGAN:  The fact is is that

14 there are responsibilities, there are costs and

15 they need to be allocated.  And there's going to be

16 a change from the existing order to some extent.

17 And however minimal there needs to be a proper

18 basis for that allocation.  And I do not know when

19 there is this division whether there is a custom

20 and a basis and a reason for that or not.

21               But I know that right now Savatran

22 was ordered to design and install those safety

23 warning devices.  And Savatran is still going to

24 have their track no matter what we do today.  So I

25 think it would be presumptuous for me to assume



125

1 that Savatran is going to be relieved of any and

2 all responsibilities even if they're reimbursed for

3 their cost.

4               So my ultimate point being I don't

5 know what is -- I don't have information that I

6 think I need to draft an order allocating those

7 responsibilities yet.  And I'm asking you to

8 consider that, to figure that out and make a

9 recommendation, okay, and anybody else that may

10 have some opinion.

11               However, I am inclined to think that,

12 as I said just now, that in a prior case I had

13 where the parties both agreed, they would be

14 responsible for maintaining each side but they

15 would somehow jointly design.  So if you never

16 heard of something like that.

17               MR. TOLIVER:  I've heard of it on --

18 where they have separate right-of-ways and there's

19 a -- you know, Union Pacific has their own set of

20 tracks and Norfolk Southern has their own and

21 they've got separate right-of-ways and they've got

22 50 feet between those tracks.  And those crossings

23 are technically supposed to be covered by one set

24 of warning devices and they may not agree to have

25 each other's railroad force come on to the other
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1 one's property and maintain and, you know, they

2 don't want responsibility for the others.  I've

3 never heard of it, to my knowledge, on a piece of

4 property owned by the Railroad.

5               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Let me ask you

6 this.  Do you have a proposal, are you proposing

7 that you can be entirely responsible for the design

8 and installation and maintenance on both sides?

9               MR. REEVES:  Yes, Judge.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I assume you don't

11 know your company's position?

12               MS. FLADHAMMER:  I do not.  I'm not

13 in a position...

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  If your company's

15 position is that's fine then I don't know if the

16 Commission would have a reason to take a different

17 position.  But I think you do probably need to

18 check with other people within the division and

19 find out what they would think before we can state

20 a position.

21               MR. TOLIVER:  Okay.

22               JUDGE DUGGAN:  But if everybody's on

23 the same link and Staff thinks it's fine it's

24 resolved.  But I do think that we need to get that

25 information.  The pavement marking, RXR?
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1               MR. TOLIVER:  We call them RXR

2 pavement markings.  I guess they're referred to as

3 railroad advanced warning pavement markings.

4               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Are they

5 provided for by the NBTC?

6               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, they are.  They're

7 required where the road is paved.  And paved is

8 kind of a nebulous term.  But generally if it's

9 asphalt, hot mix, or concrete, Portland cement

10 concrete then that's been the interpretation of

11 paved.

12               JUDGE DUGGAN:  You're saying -- I

13 think I missed the importance of what you're

14 saying.  You have a tar and chip road, they still

15 have the same markings, don't they?

16               MR. TOLIVER:  No.  Most oil and chip

17 roads don't have the markings because they don't

18 stick to the oil and chip.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  What is your

20 understanding, what are you saying that is there?

21               MR. TOLIVER:  Well, whenever they did

22 their improvement they put asphalt in there.

23 Whenever they built the last crossing they built

24 the approaches with asphalt and they put in

25 pavement markings.
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1               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  So asphalt

2 versus tar and chipped?

3               MR. TOLIVER:  Yeah.

4               THE WITNESS:  It is back past where

5 we --

6               MR. FLYNN:  Past the crossing.

7               THE WITNESS:  Past the crossing.

8               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.

9               THE WITNESS:  We had to --

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Is it asphalt far

11 enough out from the crossing for a distance

12 sufficient to put the railroad advance warning

13 devices?

14               THE WITNESS:  Yes.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Mr. Toliver, is

16 that your understanding?

17               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, your Honor.

18               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  Let me

19 skip around a little bit.  Looks to me from the

20 Exhibit A that the proposed track would be on the

21 east side of the existing track?  Is that correct,

22 Mr. Buchanan?

23               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And again going to

25 skip around.  Mr. Flynn, what's going to -- are you



129

1 allowing this?

2               MR. FLYNN:  I'm sorry, your Honor?

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  What's going to be

4 Norfolk Southern's position, are you going to allow

5 the connection?

6               MR. FLYNN:  Yes, your Honor.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So there is no

8 objection to the entire project?

9               MR. FLYNN:  That's correct.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  All right.  And then

11 Mr. Reeves, once again we had a slight off the

12 record discussion after you had discussed with Mr.

13 Buchanan.  It's my understanding that he is not

14 able to make any other projection for future usage

15 of the connector track itself other than the

16 increase of -- by two trains in one year as he

17 responded Mr. Flynn; is that correct?

18               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And that is as

20 opposed to projections for petitioner in general

21 not necessarily for the connector.  And then you

22 said -- clarified also that the increased traffic

23 as projected is primarily coming from the White

24 Oaks mine discussed and -- and that is for the

25 connector track; is that correct?
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1               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

2               MR. REEVES:  Yes, sir.

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And so that any

4 answer to the contrary previously given or previous

5 statement that you did not know is due to a

6 misunderstanding as to what I was asking; is that

7 correct?

8               THE WITNESS:  That is correct.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Is there anything

10 further on the source of projected traffic, Mr.

11 Reeves?

12               MR. REEVES:  Other than I think, your

13 Honor, I believe that evidence will show that the

14 fertilizer plant that's expected to begin shipping.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  That's the one from

16 Mt. Vernon, Indiana?

17               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

18               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Which is not opened

19 yet, correct?

20               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

21               MR. REEVES:  And anticipate some

22 grain shipments as well.

23               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Let me ask Mr.

24 Toliver.  You have looked at their plans for where

25 they're planning to place these signals after
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1 widening the crossing; is that correct?

2               MR. TOLIVER:  They -- I've looked at

3 their preliminary drawings that they submitted.  As

4 far as approvals or anything that they would need

5 to submit, Form 3 -- Form 3 petition to the

6 Commission.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  So you're not passing

8 an opinion today whether those -- whether the

9 designs meet -- I'm not asking you whether somebody

10 upstairs may not approve them or not.

11               MR. TOLIVER:  Right.

12               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I'm just asking

13 whether they appear to meet Commission

14 requirements.

15               MR. TOLIVER:  They appear to, yes.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  So even though

17 they widened the road at the crossing beyond the

18 width of the road and then they moved the signals

19 out so that they're further from the roadway they

20 still appear to be within Commission requirements

21 for the distance from the roadway?

22               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, your Honor.

23               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Because on the one

24 hand, as you know, the order usually says to

25 install signals consistent with the design and
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1 plans submitted.  But if those design plans are too

2 far out from the road...

3               MR. TOLIVER:  What I'm saying, I

4 guess, is that what they have shown or what they

5 have presented appears to be a design that would be

6 typical within the norms of what would typically be

7 approved.  However, specific approval is with the

8 submission of a Form 3.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I understand that.  I

10 understand that portion.

11               MR. TOLIVER:  If they're not in the

12 right place they're going to have to move them to

13 the right place and that's going to be part of the

14 X resolution approving the Form 3 petition.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Did you look at them

16 to see if they appeared to comply with Commission

17 rules?

18               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes.

19               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And they do appear to

20 comply, correct?

21               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes.

22               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  And I

23 think -- was that road widening stuff -- discussion

24 put on the record?

25               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes.
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1               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Pretty sure it

2 was.  The road was not itself across the surface to

3 widen the crossing surface and move the signals

4 accordingly.  All right.  I guess that's all I've

5 got.  You have anything further, Mr. Reeves?

6               MR. REEVES:  I do not.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Flynn?

8               MR. FLYNN:  Nothing further, your

9 Honor.

10               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Fladhammer?

11               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Nothing further.

12               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Kuntz?

13               MS. KUNTZ:  I have two questions.

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.

15               CROSS EXAMINATION

16 QUESTIONS BY MS. KUNTZ:

17       Q.      The proposed track, will that improve

18 the fluidity of the train operations at that

19 crossing, correct?

20       A.      Ask again, please.

21       Q.      Certainly.  The proposed track, will

22 that improve the train flow or the fluidity of your

23 train operations at that crossing?

24       A.      Yes, it will.

25       Q.      And the proposed track is not going
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1 to cause or create any congestion at that crossing?

2       A.      No.

3               MS. KUNTZ:  Thank you.

4               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Toliver?

5               MR. TOLIVER:  I have no further

6 questions, your Honor.

7               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Norfolk

8 Southern has already stated their position.  Ms.

9 Fladhammer, are you wanting additional time to

10 consider your response or rebuttal?

11               MS. FLADHAMMER:  No, your Honor.

12               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Are you going

13 to stand on your argument?

14               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Standing on your

15 argument and my cross-examination of Mr. Buchanan.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  And I

17 assume your position maintains that you request

18 that we deny this, correct?

19               MS. FLADHAMMER:  That's correct.

20               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Ms. Kuntz,

21 position?

22               MS. KUNTZ:  We have no objection,

23 your Honor.

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Toliver?

25               MR. TOLIVER:  We have no objection to
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1 the addition of a second track.

2               JUDGE DUGGAN:  All right.  Ms.

3 Fladhammer, sometimes people waive ex parte

4 discussions allowing me to discuss with Mr. Toliver

5 and him to give -- his discussions would normally

6 be by e-mail to everybody so everybody knows what's

7 going on.  This would -- it helps me write an order

8 and if I find something that I didn't understand, I

9 grasp wrong and he tells me, no, you didn't get

10 that right.  It does present, you know, a problem

11 but how do you feel about that?

12               MS. FLADHAMMER:  I don't have any

13 objection to you communicating with Mr. Toliver.

14               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And then Mr.

15 Toliver, if you do that would you agree that all

16 communication with the parties would be an equal

17 e-mail to everybody so that they all hear the same

18 thing from you at the same time?

19               MR. TOLIVER:  Absolutely, your Honor.

20               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  And then

21 -- so it appears to me that the only thing left is

22 the issue of allocation of responsibility for

23 design and installation which you're willing to

24 take but you don't know if your people want to give

25 that up.
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1               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Right.  I don't know

2 what their position is on that.

3               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And what the

4 Commission staff policy would be in a situation

5 like this where there's only one right-of-way but

6 yet two track owners.  So I think -- what I am

7 getting at is I obviously can't mark curtain taken

8 yet but we need your position and his position and

9 I'm trying to figure out if I can do it without a

10 hearing.  Really should be on the record.  How long

11 would it take you to get -- to have a position from

12 your team?

13               MS. FLADHAMMER:  Could I have two

14 weeks, Judge?

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And I assume you can

16 talk to them and have a position within two weeks?

17               MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, your Honor.

18               JUDGE DUGGAN:  How's your time frame,

19 Mr. Reeves, Mr. Buchanan?

20               THE WITNESS:  Sooner the better.

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  And -- actually if

22 it's not a couple weeks it isn't going to be three

23 or four possibly.  Let's do this.  When you guys

24 inform each other and inform everybody equally, if

25 you would, that you have a position and hopefully
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1 what that position is, you can e-mail it.  Possibly

2 we can do that part by stipulation, we can have a

3 hearing and then amend -- you know, place this

4 additional information in by stipulation.  And then

5 I can avoid the hearing that way and I can mark

6 curtain taken.

7               So in other words -- yeah.  You find

8 out your position, e-mail it to everybody; your

9 position, e-mail it to everybody; Aaron can come

10 bring those to me and if everybody's on the same

11 page then I can mark curtain taken and note in the

12 order that this portion was done by stipulation.

13 Is there any objection to do it that way, Mr.

14 Reeves?

15               MR. REEVES:  No objection.

16               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Flynn?

17               MR. FLYNN:  No, your Honor.

18               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Fladhammer?

19               MS. FLADHAMMER:  No, your Honor.

20               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Ms. Kuntz?

21               MS. KUNTZ:  No, your Honor.

22               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Toliver?

23               MR. TOLIVER:  No objection, your

24 Honor.

25               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  Hopefully
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1 if there's a disagreement we'll come back and have

2 a hearing.  Ask everybody if you will waive the ex

3 parte -- oh, there's a problem because you guys

4 aren't represented by anybody.  Well, -- and the

5 City's not here.  You've been in touch with her?

6               MR. TOLIVER:  I did.  And they

7 submitted the same position that they basically

8 don't want to be involved.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Yeah.  But sometimes

10 you've gotten -- I think they could probably -- I

11 could discuss it with them and give them time to

12 file something.  If I don't have ex parte from

13 everyone then I don't have it.

14               MR. TOLIVER:  Right.

15               JUDGE DUGGAN:  In which case you guys

16 could still talk to each other but you can't talk

17 to me.  And then you let me know if we need a

18 hearing or not to resolve this, okay?

19               MR. TOLIVER:  So can Mr. Moore and

20 Mr. --

21               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I'm going ask them

22 now.

23               MR. TOLIVER:  -- Simmons --

24               JUDGE DUGGAN:  I'm going to explain

25 it to them and then also see if you can assist
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1 them, if you're willing to do so, helping them file

2 an ex parte waiver so it's written.

3               MR. TOLIVER:  Okay.

4               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Actually I started

5 explaining this to you at the first of the hearing

6 last time I think.  There is a rule that says that

7 the parties can't talk to Mr. Toliver nor me once

8 the petition is filed because that would be

9 possibly undue influence or information being

10 obtained that's not available to everybody.  And so

11 it's just like talking -- one side going and

12 talking to the judge in the case, you know, you

13 don't want your opponent talking to the judge

14 without you being present.

15               But now that the evidence has been

16 taken in this fashion and the only issue we're

17 talking about is two things, number one how I'm

18 going to draft the order based upon the evidence

19 and resolving this final issue about who should be

20 responsible for the signals.  Whether you, on

21 behalf of your entity, will be willing to waive the

22 requirement for prohibition against everybody

23 talking to me to the extent that Mr. Toliver will

24 be the only one talking to me and that he will

25 communicate equally with all of you by e-mail.  So
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1 let me -- do you have an e-mail?  That's a stupid

2 question.

3               MR. MOORE:  Yes.

4               MR. SIMMONS:  Yes.

5               JUDGE DUGGAN:  You both have access

6 to the e-mail and are you agreeable to waiving the

7 ex parte.  Mr. Moore?

8               MR. MOORE:  Yes.

9               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Simmons?

10               MR. SIMMONS:  Yes.

11               JUDGE DUGGAN:  Thank you very much.

12 Then that's what we're going to do and the record

13 will remain open until further notice.

14               (Whereupon the record was left open

15               until further notice.)
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